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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT ABOUT FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q (“Quarterly Report”) includes certain statements that may be deemed to be forward-looking statements within
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the
“Exchange Act”). All statements, other than statements of historical fact or present financial information, that address activities, outcomes and other
matters that should or may occur in the future, including, without limitation, statements regarding the financial position, business strategy, production and
reserve growth and other plans and objectives for our future operations, are forward-looking statements. Although we believe the expectations
expressed in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are not guarantees of future performance. We
have no obligation and make no undertaking to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statements, except as may be required by law.

Forward-looking statements include the items identified in the preceding paragraph, information concerning possible or assumed future results of
operations and other statements in this Quarterly Report identified by words such as “anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “estimate,” “continue,”
“potential,” “should,” “could,” “may,” “will,” “objective,” “guidance,” “outlook,” “effort,” “expect,” “believe,” “predict,” “budget,” “projection,” “goal,” “forecast,”

“model,” “target” or similar words. Statements may be forward-looking even in the absence of these particular words.

" o n o« " ow " o

You should not place undue reliance on forward-looking statements. They are subject to known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors
that may affect our operations, markets, products, services and prices and cause our actual results, performance or achievements to be materially
different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. These forward-looking
statements are based on management’s current beliefs, based on currently available information, as to the outcome and timing of future events. In
addition to any assumptions and other factors referred to specifically in connection with forward-looking statements, risks, uncertainties and factors that
could cause our actual results to differ materially from those indicated in any forward-looking statement include, but are not limited to:

« the timing and extent of changes in market conditions and prices for natural gas, oil and natural gas liquids (“NGLs") (including regional basis
differentials);

e our ability to fund our planned capital investments;

¢ achange in our credit rating or adverse changes in interest rates;

« the extent to which lower commodity prices impact our ability to service or refinance our existing debt;

« the impact of volatility in the financial markets or other global economic factors, including any future development of the LNG market;
« geopolitical and business conditions in key regions of the world,;

« difficulties in appropriately allocating capital and resources among our strategic opportunities;

« the timing and extent of our success in discovering, developing, producing, replacing and estimating reserves;

« our ability to maintain leases that may expire if production is not established or profitably maintained;

« our ability to meet natural gas delivery commitments and to utilize or monetize our firm transportation commitments;

« our ability to realize the expected benefits from mergers and acquisitions, including the Proposed Merger (as defined below);
« our ability to transport our production to the most favorable markets or at all;

* availability and costs of personnel and of products and services provided by third parties;

« the impact of government regulation, including changes in law, the ability to obtain and maintain permits, any increase in severance or similar taxes,
and legislation or regulation relating to hydraulic fracturing or other drilling and completion techniques, climate and over-the-counter derivatives;

« our ability to achieve, reach or otherwise meet initiatives, plans, or ambitions with respect to environmental, social and governance matters;
« the impact of the adverse outcome of any material litigation against us or judicial decisions that affect us or our industry generally;

« the effects of weather or power outages;

* increased competition;

* inflation rates;

« the financial impact of accounting regulations and critical accounting policies;

+ the comparative cost of alternative fuels;
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« credit risk relating to the risk of loss as a result of non-performance by our counterparties, including as a result of financial or banking failures;

¢ the impact of reduced demand for our production and products in which our production is a component due to governmental and societal actions
taken in response to a pandemic or other world health event;

e our hedging strategy and results;
« our ability to obtain debt or equity financing on satisfactory terms;

« risks related to the proposed transaction (the “Proposed Merger”) between Southwestern and Chesapeake Energy Corporation (“Chesapeake”),
including that the Proposed Merger may not be completed on anticipated terms and timing, or at all, including obtaining regulatory approvals that may
be required on anticipated terms and Southwestern and Chesapeake stockholder approval; the possibility that any of the anticipated benefits of the
transaction will not be realized or that the two companies will not be successfully integrated; the risk that disruptions from the transaction will harm
Southwestern’s business, including current plans and operations and that management’s time and attention will be diverted on transaction-related
issues; restrictions on our operations during the pendency of the Proposed Merger, potential adverse reactions or changes to business relationships
resulting from the announcement or completion of the Proposed Merger; and potential litigation relating to the Proposed Merger that could be
instituted against Southwestern or its directors; and

¢ any other factors listed in the reports we have filed and may file with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC").

Should one or more of the risks or uncertainties described above or elsewhere in this Quarterly Report occur, or should underlying assumptions
prove incorrect, our actual results and plans could differ materially from those expressed in any forward-looking statements. We specifically disclaim all
responsibility to update publicly any information contained in a forward-looking statement or any forward-looking statement in its entirety and therefore
disclaim any resulting liability for potentially related damages.

Reserve engineering is a process of estimating underground accumulations of natural gas, oil and NGLs that cannot be measured in an exact way.
The accuracy of any reserve estimate depends on the quality of available data, the interpretation of such data and price and cost assumptions made by
reserve engineers. In addition, the results of drilling, testing and production activities may justify revisions of estimates that were made previously. If
significant, such revisions would change the schedule of any further production and our development program. Accordingly, reserve estimates may differ
significantly from the quantities of natural gas, oil and NGLs that are ultimately recovered.

All forward-looking statements attributable to us are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(in millions, except share/per share amounts)
Operating Revenues:

Gas sales

Oil sales

NGL sales

Marketing

Other

Operating Costs and Expenses:
Marketing purchases
Operating expenses
General and administrative expenses

Merger-related expenses

Depreciation, depletion and amortization

Impairments

Taxes, other than income taxes

Operating Income (Loss)
Interest Expense:
Interest on debt
Other interest charges

Interest capitalized

Gain on Derivatives
Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

Other Income (Loss), Net

Income (Loss) Before Income Taxes
Provision (Benefit) for Income Taxes:
Current

Deferred

Net Income (Loss)

Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share:

Basic

Diluted

Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding:

Basic

Diluted

PART | - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March 31,

2024 2023
$ 584 $ 1,145
82 95

174 201

579 679

(2) (2)

1,417 2,118

588 667

417 418

56 46

9 N

262 313

2,093 =

49 68

3,474 1,512

(2,057) 606

59 63

3 3

(27) (30)

35 36

126 1,401

- (19)

1 (1)

(1,965) 1,951

(430) 12

(430) 12

$ (1,535) $ 1,939
$ (139) $ 1.76
$ (139) $ 1.76
1,101,824,856 1,100,278,261
1,101,824,856 1,102,396,636

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(Unaudited)

For the three months ended March

31,
(in millions) 2024 2023
Net income (loss) $ (1,535) $ 1,939
Change in value of pension and other postretirement liabilities:
Amortization of prior service cost and net gain, including gain on settlements and curtailments included in net periodic — 1
pension cost
Net actuarial gain (loss) incurred in period 2 (2)
Net tax loss attributable to pension termination — (14)
Total change in value of pension and postretirement liabilities 2 (15)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (1,533) $ 1,924

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Unaudited)

March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

ASSETS (in millions)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29 % 21
Accounts receivable, net 491 680
Derivative assets 640 614
Other current assets 91 100
Total current assets 1,251 1,415
Natural gas and oil properties, using the full cost method, including $ 2,037 million as of March 31, 2024 and $ 38,308 37,772
2,075 million as of December 31, 2023 excluded from amortization
Other 573 566
Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization (30,784) (28,425)
Total property and equipment, net 8,097 9,913
Operating lease assets 144 154
Long-term derivative assets 131 175
Deferred tax assets 674 238
Other long-term assets 101 96
Total long-term assets 1,050 663
TOTAL ASSETS $ 10,398 $ 11,991
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of long-term debt $ 389 $ —
Accounts payable 1,299 1,384
Taxes payable 123 128
Interest payable 26 77
Derivative liabilities 116 79
Current operating lease liabilities 43 44
Other current liabilities 28 17
Total current liabilities 2,024 1,729
Long-term debt 3,609 3,947
Long-term operating lease liabilities 100 107
Long-term derivative liabilities 75 100
Other long-term liabilities 224 220
Total long-term liabilities 4,008 4,374
Commitments and contingencies (Note 11)
Equity:
Common stock, $ 0.01 par value; 2,500,000,000 shares authorized; issued 1,164,459,599 shares as of 12 12
March 31, 2024 and 1,163,077,745 shares as of December 31, 2023
Additional paid-in capital 7,199 7,188
Accumulated deficit (2,517) (982)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1) (3)
Common stock in treasury, 61,614,693 shares as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 (327) (327)
Total equity 4,366 5,888
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $ 10,398 $ 11,991

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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-SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Unaudited)
For the three months ended March 31,
(in millions) 2024 2023
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income (loss) $ (1,535) 1,939
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 262 313
Amortization of debt issuance costs 2 2
Impairments 2,093 —
Deferred income taxes (430) 12
(Gain) loss on derivatives, unsettled 30 (1,524)
Stock-based compensation 7 1
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — 19
Other 1 2
Change in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 190 734
Accounts payable (94) (257)
Taxes payable (5) (27)
Interest payable (29) (33)
Inventories (1) (14)
Other assets and liabilities 5 (30)
Net cash provided by operating activities 496 1,137
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Capital investments (521) (670)
Net cash used in investing activities (521) (670)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Payments on long-term debt = (437)
Payments on revolving credit facility (981) (1,357)
Borrowings under revolving credit facility 1,031 1,317
Change in bank drafts outstanding (12) (33)
Cash paid for tax withholding (5) (4)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 33 (514)
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 8 (47)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 21 50
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 29 3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31, 2023
Comprehensive loss:

Net loss

Other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss
Stock-based compensation
Restricted units vested

Tax withholding — stock compensation

Balance at March 31, 2024

Balance at December 31, 2022
Comprehensive loss:

Net income

Other comprehensive loss
Total comprehensive income
Stock-based compensation
Restricted units vested
Tax withholding — stock compensation

Balance at March 31, 2023

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(Unaudited)
Common Stock Additional Accumulated Other ~ Common Stock in Treasury
Shares Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive
Issued Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares Amount Total
(in millions, except share amounts)
1,163,077,745 $ 12 $ 7,188 $ (982) $ (3) 61,614,693 $ (327) $5,888
— — — (1,535) — — — (1,535)
— — — — 2 — — 2
= — — — — — —  (1533)
— — 10 — — — 10
2,108,403 — 6 — — — — 6
(726,549) — (5) — — — — (5)
1,164,459,599 $ 12 $ 7199 $ (2517) $ (1) 61,614,693 $ (327) $ 4,366
Common Stock Additional Accumulated Other Common Stock in Treasury
Shares Paid-In Accumulated Comprehensive
Issued Amount Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Shares Amount Total
(in millions, except share amounts)
1,161,545,588 $ 12 $ 7,172 $ (2539) $ 6 61,614,693 $ (327) $4,324
— — — 1,939 — — — 1,939
— — — — (15) — — (15)
= = = = = = = 1,924
— — 2 — — — — 2
1,999,039 — 8 — — — — 8
(662,163 ) — (4) — — — — (4)
1,162,882,464 $ 12 $ 7,178 $ (600) $ (9) 61,614,693 $ (327) $6,254

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO UNAUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Nature of Operations

Southwestern Energy Company (including its subsidiaries, collectively “Southwestern” or the “Company”) is an independent energy company
engaged in natural gas, oil and NGLs development, exploration and production (“E&P”). The Company is also focused on creating and capturing
additional value through its marketing business (“Marketing”). Southwestern conducts most of its business through subsidiaries and operates principally
in two segments: E&P and Marketing.

E&P. Southwestern’s primary business is the development and production of natural gas as well as associated NGLs and oil, with ongoing
operations focused on the development of unconventional natural gas and oil reservoirs located in Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Ohio and Louisiana. The
Company’s operations in Pennsylvania, West Virginia and Ohio, herein referred to as “Appalachia,” are primarily focused on the Marcellus Shale, the
Utica and the Upper Devonian unconventional natural gas and liquids reservoirs. The Company’s operations in Louisiana, herein referred to as
“Haynesville,” are primarily focused on the Haynesville and Bossier natural gas reservoirs (“Haynesville and Bossier Shales”). The Company also
operates drilling rigs and provides certain oilfield products and services, principally serving the Company’s E&P operations through vertical integration.

Marketing. Southwestern’s marketing activities capture opportunities that arise through the marketing and transportation of natural gas, oil and NGLs
primarily produced in its E&P operations.

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared using accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) for
interim financial information and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission. Certain information relating to
the Company’s organization and footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP have been
appropriately condensed or omitted in this Quarterly Report.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements contained in this report include all normal and recurring material adjustments that, in the opinion of
management, are necessary for a fair statement of the financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the interim periods presented herein. It
is recommended that these consolidated financial statements be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto
included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (“2023 Annual Report”).

The Company’s significant accounting policies, which have been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee of the Company’s board of directors
(the “Board”), are summarized in Note 1 in the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in the Company’s 2023 Annual Report.

Proposed merger of the Company with Chesapeake Energy Corporation

On January 10, 2024, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Chesapeake Energy Corporation,
an Oklahoma corporation (“Chesapeake”), Hulk Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and a newly formed, wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake
(“Merger Sub”) and Hulk LLC Sub, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake (“LLC Sub” and together with
Merger Sub, the Company and Chesapeake, the “Parties”), pursuant to which Merger Sub will merge with and into the Company (the “Proposed
Merger”), with the Company continuing as a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake (the “Surviving Corporation”). Immediately following the time the
Proposed Merger becomes effective (the “Effective Time”), the Surviving Corporation will be merged with and into LLC Sub, with LLC Sub continuing as
the surviving entity and as a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, upon completion of the Proposed
Merger, Southwestern shareholders will receive 0.0867 shares of Chesapeake common stock for one share of Southwestern common stock. The
consideration to be paid under the Merger Agreement is subject to adjustment as provided in the Merger Agreement. No fractional shares of Chesapeake
common stock will be issued in the Proposed Merger, the holders of shares of Southwestern common stock will receive cash in lieu of fractional shares of
Chesapeake common stock, if any, in accordance with the terms of the Merger Agreement.

The consummation of the Proposed Merger is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of customary closing conditions, including: receipt of the required
approvals from the stockholders of the Company and Chesapeake, and the expiration or
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termination of the extended waiting period imposed by the issuance of a request for additional information and documentary materials by the Federal
Trade Commission under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the “HSR Act”) and no agreement between or
commitment by the Parties and any governmental entity not to consummate the Proposed Merger being in effect. The Company and Chesapeake have
each made customary representations and warranties in the Merger Agreement. The Merger Agreement also contains customary pre-closing covenants
of the Company and Chesapeake, including, subject to certain exceptions, covenants relating to conducting their respective businesses in the ordinary
course consistent with past practice and refraining from taking certain actions, excepting in each case actions expressly permitted or required by the
Merger Agreement, required by law or consented to by the other party in writing. The Merger Agreement provides that in the event of termination of the
Merger Agreement under certain circumstances, the Company may be required to reimburse Chesapeake’s expenses up to $ 55.6 million or pay
Chesapeake a termination fee equal to $ 389 million less any expenses previously paid. Further, Chesapeake may be required to reimburse our
expenses up to $ 37.25 million or pay us a termination fee equal to $ 260 million less any expenses previously paid.

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, the Company incurred approximately $ 9 million in merger-related expenses, mostly comprised of
professional fees, associated with the Proposed Merger.

(2) REVENUE RECOGNITION
Revenues from Contracts with Customers

Natural gas and liquids. Natural gas, oil and NGL sales are recognized when control of the product is transferred to the customer at a designated
delivery point. The pricing provisions of the Company’s contracts are primarily tied to a market index with certain adjustments based on factors such as
delivery, quality of the product and prevailing supply and demand conditions in the geographic areas in which the Company operates. Under the
Company’s sales contracts, the delivery of each unit of natural gas, oil and NGLs represents a separate performance obligation, and revenue is
recognized at the point in time when the performance obligations are fulfilled. There is no significant financing component to the Company’s revenues as
payment terms are typically within 30 to 60 days of control transfer. Furthermore, consideration from a customer corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the Company’s performance completed to date. As a result, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Company has
a right to invoice and has not disclosed information regarding its remaining performance obligations.

The Company records revenue from its natural gas and liquids production in the amount of its net revenue interest in sales from its properties.
Accordingly, natural gas and liquid sales are not recognized for deliveries in excess of the Company’s net revenue interest, while natural gas and liquid
sales are recognized for any under-delivered volumes.

Marketing. The Company, through its marketing affiliate, generally markets natural gas, oil and NGLs for its affiliated E&P companies as well as
other joint owners who choose to market with the Company. In addition, the Company markets some products purchased from third parties. Marketing
revenues for natural gas, oil and NGL sales are recognized when control of the product is transferred to the customer at a designated delivery point. The
pricing provisions of the Company’s contracts are primarily tied to market indices with certain adjustments based on factors such as delivery, quality of
the product and prevailing supply and demand conditions. Under the Company’s marketing contracts, the delivery of each unit of natural gas, oil and
NGLs represents a separate performance obligation, and revenue is recognized at the point in time when the performance obligations are
fulfilled. Customers are invoiced and revenues are recorded each month as natural gas, oil and NGLs are delivered, and payment terms are typically
within 30t0 6 0 days of control transfer. Furthermore, consideration from a customer corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the
Company’s performance completed to date. As a result, the Company recognizes revenue in the amount to which the Company has a right to invoice
and has not disclosed information regarding its remaining performance obligations.

10
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Disaggregation of Revenues

The Company presents a disaggregation of E&P revenues by product on the consolidated statements of operations net of intersegment revenues.
The following table reconciles operating revenues as presented on the consolidated statements of operations to the operating revenues by segment:

Intersegment
(in millions) E&P Marketing Revenues Total
Three months ended March 31, 2024
Gas sales $ 571 $ — 3 13 $ 584
Oil sales 81 —_ 1 82
NGL sales 174 — — 174
Marketing - 1,377 (798) 579
Other @ (2) — — (2)
Total $ 824 $ 1,377 $ (784) $ 1,417
(in millions)
Three months ended March 31, 2023
Gas sales $ 1,136 $ — 8 9 3 1,145
Oil sales 94 — 1 95
NGL sales 201 — — 201
Marketing — 2,041 (1,362) 679
Other @ (2) — — (2)
Total $ 1,429 $ 2,041 % (1,352) $ 2,118

(1) For the three months ended March 31, 2024 and the three months ended March 31, 2023, other E&P revenues consists primarily of losses on purchaser imbalances associated
with natural gas and certain NGLs.

Associated E&P revenues are also disaggregated for analysis on a geographic basis by the core areas in which the Company operates, which are
Appalachia and Haynesville.

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2024 2023

Appalachia $ 554 $ 923

Haynesville 270 506
Total $ 824 $ 1,429

Receivables from Contracts with Customers

The following table reconciles the Company'’s receivables from contracts with customers to consolidated accounts receivable as presented on the
consolidated balance sheet:

(in millions) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Receivables from contracts with customers $ 433 $ 622

Other accounts receivable 58 58
Total accounts receivable $ 491 % 680

Amounts recognized against the Company’s allowance for doubtful accounts related to receivables arising from contracts with customers were not
significant for both the three months ended March 31, 2024 and year ended December 31, 2023. The Company has no contract assets or contract
liabilities associated with its revenues from contracts with customers.

(3) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The following table presents a summary of cash and cash equivalents as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023:

(in millions) March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023

Cash $ 23 8 1

Marketable securities () 6 20
Total $ 29 % 21

(1) Typically consists of government stable value money market funds.

11
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(4) NATURAL GAS AND OIL PROPERTIES

The Company utilizes the full cost method of accounting for costs related to the development, exploration and acquisition of natural gas and oil
properties. Under this method, all such costs (productive and nonproductive), including salaries, benefits and other internal costs directly attributable to
these activities, are capitalized on a country-by-country basis and amortized over the estimated lives of the properties using the units-of-production
method. These capitalized costs are subject to a ceiling test that limits such pooled costs, net of applicable deferred taxes, to the aggregate of the
present value of future net revenues attributable to proved natural gas, oil and NGL reserves discounted at 10 % (standardized measure). Any costs in
excess of the ceiling are written off as a non-cash expense. The expense may not be reversed in future periods, even though higher natural gas, oil and
NGL prices may subsequently increase the ceiling. Companies using the full cost method are required to use the average quoted price from the first day
of each month from the previous 12 months, including the impact of derivatives designated for hedge accounting, to calculate the ceiling value of their
reserves. The Company had no hedge positions that were designated for hedge accounting as of March 31, 2024. Prices used to calculate the ceiling
value of reserves were as follows:

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Natural gas (per MMBtu) $ 245 $ 5.96
Oil (per Bbl) $ 77.48 $ 90.97
NGLs (per Bbl) $ 2117 $ 30.69

Using the average quoted prices above, adjusted for market differentials, the Company’s net book value of its United States natural gas and oil
properties exceeded the ceiling amount at March 31, 2024, resulting in an impairment of $ 2,093 million. Decreases in market prices as well as changes
in production rates, levels of reserves, evaluation of costs excluded from amortization, future development costs and production costs could result in
future non-cash ceiling test impairments to the Company’s natural gas and oil properties. Given the fall in commodity prices during 2023 and into 2024,
the Company expects that an additional non-cash impairment of its asset will likely occur in the second quarter of 2024 and perhaps later.

(5) EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per common share is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common stock by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the reportable period. The diluted earnings per share calculation adds to the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding: the incremental shares that would have been outstanding assuming the exercise of dilutive stock options, the vesting of unvested
restricted shares of common stock, restricted stock units and performance units. An antidilutive impact is an increase in earnings per share or a reduction
in net loss per share resulting from the conversion, exercise or contingent issuance of certain securities.

The following table presents the computation of earnings per share for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023:

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions, except share/per share amounts) 2024 2023

Net income (loss) $ (1,535) $ 1,939

Number of common shares:

Weighted average outstanding 1,101,824,856 1,100,278,261
Effect of issuance of non-vested restricted common stock — 790,131
Effect of issuance of non-vested restricted units — 1,328,244

Weighted average and dilutive outstanding 1,101,824,856 1,102,396,636

Earnings (loss) per common share

Basic $ (1.39) $ 1.76

Diluted $ (139) $ 1.76
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The following table presents the common stock shares equivalent excluded from the calculation of diluted earnings per share for the three months
ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, as they would have had an antidilutive effect:

For the three months ended March 31,

2024 2023
Unexercised stock options 459,638 866,318
Unvested restricted common stock 977,979 —
Restricted units 3,490,947 1,914,812
Performance units 554,248 326,088
Total 5,482,812 3,107,218
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(6) DERIVATIVES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company is exposed to volatility in market prices and basis differentials for natural gas, oil and NGLs which impacts the predictability of its cash
flows related to the sale of those commodities. These risks are managed by the Company’s use of certain derivative financial instruments. As of
March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, the Company’s derivative financial instruments consisted of fixed price swaps, two-way costless collars, three-way
costless collars, basis swaps, and options (calls and puts). A description of the Company’s derivative financial instruments is provided below:

Fixed price swaps If the Company sells a fixed price swap, the Company receives a fixed price for the contract, and pays a
floating market price to the counterparty. If the Company purchases a fixed price swap, the Company receives a
floating market price for the contract and pays a fixed price to the counterparty.

Two-way costless collars Arrangements that contain a fixed floor price (“purchased put option”) and a fixed ceiling price (“sold call
option”) based on an index price which, in aggregate, have no net cost. At the contract settlement date, (1) if the
index price is higher than the ceiling price, the Company pays the counterparty the difference between the index
price and ceiling price, (2) if the index price is between the floor and ceiling prices, no payments are due from either
party, and (3) if the index price is below the floor price, the Company will receive the difference between the floor
price and the index price.

Three-way costless collars Arrangements that contain a purchased put option, a sold call option and a sold put option based on an index
price that, in aggregate, have no net cost. At the contract settlement date, (1) if the index price is higher than the
sold call strike price, the Company pays the counterparty the difference between the index price and sold call strike
price, (2) if the index price is between the purchased put strike price and the sold call strike price, no payments are
due from either party, (3) if the index price is between the sold put strike price and the purchased put strike price,
the Company will receive the difference between the purchased put strike price and the index price, and (4) if the
index price is below the sold put strike price, the Company will receive the difference between the purchased put
strike price and the sold put strike price.

Basis swaps Arrangements that guarantee a price differential for natural gas from a specified delivery point. If the Company
sells a basis swap, the Company receives a payment from the counterparty if the price differential is greater than
the stated terms of the contract and pays the counterparty if the price differential is less than the stated terms of the
contract. If the Company purchases a basis swap, the Company pays the counterparty if the price differential is
greater than the stated terms of the contract and receives a payment from the counterparty if the price differential is
less than the stated terms of the contract.

Options (Calls and Puts) The Company purchases and sells options in exchange for premiums. If the Company purchases a call option,
the Company receives from the counterparty the excess (if any) of the market price over the strike price of the call
option at the time of settlement, but if the market price is below the call's strike price, no payment is due from either
party. If the Company sells a call option, the Company pays the counterparty the excess (if any) of the market
price over the strike price of the call option at the time of settlement, but if the market price is below the call’s strike
price, no payment is due from either party. If the Company purchases a put option, the Company receives from the
counterparty the excess (if any) of the strike price over the market price of the put option at the time of settlement,
but if the market price is above the put’s strike price, no payment is due from either party. If the Company sells a
put option, the Company pays the counterparty the excess (if any) of the strike price over the market price of the
put option at the time of settlement, but if the market price is above the put's strike price, no payment is due from
either party.

The Company chooses counterparties for its derivative instruments that it believes are creditworthy at the time the transactions are entered into, and
the Company actively monitors the credit ratings and credit default swap rates of these counterparties where applicable. However, there can be no
assurance that a counterparty will be able to meet its obligations to the Company. The Company presents its derivative positions on a gross basis and
does not net the asset and liability positions.
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The following tables provide information about the Company'’s financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in commaodity prices and that are
used to protect the Company’s exposure. None of the financial instruments below are designated for hedge accounting treatment. The tables present the
notional amount, the weighted average contract prices and the fair value by expected maturity dates as of March 31, 2024:

Financial Protection on Production

Weighted Average Price per MMBtu

Fair Value at
Basis March 31, 2024
Volume (Bcf) Swaps Sold Puts Purchased Puts Sold Calls Differential (in millions)
Natural Gas
2024
Fixed price swaps 409 $ 358 $ — 3 — 8 — — 3 486
Two-way costless collars 33 — — 3.07 3.53 — 24
Three-way costless collars 60 — 2.50 3.25 4.19 — 30
Total 502 $ 540
2025
Fixed price swaps 33 % 347 $ — 8 — 8 — 3 — $ —
Two-way costless collars 73 — — 3.50 5.40 — 33
Three-way costless collars 161 — 2.59 3.66 5.88 — 62
Total 267 $ 95
Basis Swaps
2024 94 $ — 3 — 3 — 8 — 3 (0.71) $ (11)
2025 9 — — — — (0.64) 2
Total 103 $ (9)
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oil

2024
Fixed price swaps
Two-way costless collars
Three-way costless collars

Total

2025

Fixed price swaps

Three-way costless collars

Total

Ethane

2024
Fixed price swaps

2025

Fixed price swaps

Propane
2024
Fixed price swaps
2025

Fixed price swaps

Normal Butane
2024
Fixed price swaps
2025

Fixed price swaps

Natural Gasoline
2024
Fixed price swaps
2025

Fixed price swaps

Other Derivative Contracts

Call Options - Natural Gas (Net)
2024
2025
2026

Total

Weighted Average Strike Price per Bbl

Fair Value at

Volume March 31, 2024
(MBbls) Swaps Sold Puts Purchased Puts Sold Calls (in millions)

1,057 $ 7162 $ — 3 — 3% — 3 (9)
348 — — 70.00 86.40 (1)
534 — 56.72 66.72 88.26 (1)
1,939 $ (11)

41 % 7766 $ — % — 3 — —

1,278 — 58.92 68.92 92.83 —

1,319 $ _

533 $ 10.05 $ — % — 8 — % 10

2,190 $ 1019 $ — 3 — % — % —
4,483 $ 3123 % — 3 — 3 — 3 (17)
1341 $ 3025 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 (1)
1,073 $ 3942 $ — 3 — 3 — 3 (2)

548 $ 3528 $ — $ — % — $ —
1,210 $ 6145 $ — % — 3 — % (5)
730 $ 56.44 $ — % — $ — 3 (4)

Fair Value at
Volume Weighted Average March 31, 2024
(Bcf) Strike Price per MMBtu (in millions)

55 $ 7.00 $ —
73 7.00 (4)
73 7.00 (11)
201 $ (15)

At March 31, 2024, the net fair value of the Company'’s financial instruments was a $ 580 million asset, which included net reduction of the asset of $
1 million related to non-performance risk. See Note 8 for additional details regarding the Company’s fair value measurements of its derivatives position.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had no positions designated for hedge accounting treatment. Gains and losses on derivatives that are not
designated for hedge accounting treatment, or do not meet hedge accounting requirements, are recorded as a component of gain (loss) on derivatives on
the consolidated statements of operations. Accordingly, the gain (loss) on
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derivatives component of the statement of operations reflects the gains and losses on both settled and unsettled derivatives. Only the settled gains and
losses are included in the Company’s realized commodity price calculations.

The balance sheet classification of the assets and liabilities related to derivative financial instruments are summarized below as of March 31, 2024

and December 31, 2023:

Derivative Assets

(in millions)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Fixed price swaps — natural gas

Fixed price swaps — oil

Fixed price swaps — ethane

Fixed price swaps — propane

Fixed price swaps — normal butane
Fixed price swaps — natural gasoline
Two-way costless collars — natural gas
Two-way costless collars — oil
Three-way costless collars — natural gas
Three-way costless collars — ol

Basis swaps — natural gas

Put options — natural gas

Fixed price swaps — natural gas
Two-way costless collars — natural gas
Three-way costless collars — natural gas
Three-way costless collars — ol

Basis swaps — natural gas

Total derivative assets

Derivative Liabilities

(in millions)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments:

Fixed price swaps — natural gas

Fixed price swaps — oil

Fixed price swaps — propane

Fixed price swaps — normal butane
Fixed price swaps — natural gasoline
Two-way costless collars — natural gas
Two-way costless collars — oil
Three-way costless collars — natural gas
Three-way costless collars — ol

Basis swaps — natural gas

Call options — natural gas

Put options — natural gas

Fixed price swaps — natural gas

Fixed price swaps — propane

Fixed price swaps — natural gasoline
Two-way costless collars — natural gas
Three-way costless collars — natural gas
Three-way costless collars — ol

Call options — natural gas

Total derivative liabilities

Balance Sheet Classification

Fair Value

March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Derivative assets
Other long-term assets
Other long-term assets
Other long-term assets
Other long-term assets

Other long-term assets

Balance Sheet Classification

498 466
—_ 1
10 9

1 12
— 1
—_ 2
38 36
—_ 3
84 62

3 1

7 14
—_ 8

3 —
33 46
86 116

7 10

2 4

772 791

Fair Value

March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Derivative liabilities
Long-term derivative liabilities
Long-term derivative liabilities
Long-term derivative liabilities
Long-term derivative liabilities
Long-term derivative liabilities
Long-term derivative liabilities

Long-term derivative liabilities
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12 18
9 2
18 1
2 —
6 I
6 14
1 1
40 27
3 1
18 6
1 1
— 8
3 —
1 J—
3 —
8 15
38 60
8 8
14 17
191 179
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Net Derivative Position

March 31, 2024

December 31, 2023

(in millions)

Net current derivative asset (liability) 525 536

Net long-term derivative asset (liability) 56 76

Non-performance risk adjustment (1) (2)
Net total derivative asset (liability) 580 610

The following tables summarize the before-tax effect of the Company’s derivative instruments on the consolidated statements of operations for the
three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023:

Unsettled Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Earnings

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Classification of Gain (Loss) on For the three months ended March 31,

Derivative Instrument Derivatives, Unsettled 2024 2023
(in millions)

Fixed price swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 38 $ 961
Fixed price swaps — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (8) 12
Fixed price swaps — ethane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 1 9
Fixed price swaps — propane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (29) 1
Fixed price swaps — normal butane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (3) 1
Fixed price swaps — natural gasoline Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (11) 1
Two-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 4 241
Two-way costless collars — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (3) —
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 1 263
Three-way costless collars — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (3) 12
Basis swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (21) (30)
Call options — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 3 61
Sold put options - natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 8 (6)
Purchased put options — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (8) 2

Total gain (loss) on unsettled derivatives (31) $ 1,528
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Settled Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Earnings®

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Classification of Gain (Loss) on For the three months ended March 31,

Derivatives, Settled 2024 2023

Derivative Instrument

(in millions)

Fixed price swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 140 $ (45)
Fixed price swaps — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (4) (4)
Fixed price swaps — ethane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 3 1
Fixed price swaps — propane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (2) 1
Fixed price swaps — normal butane Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (1) —
Fixed price swaps — natural gasoline Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (1) —
Two-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 9 —
Three-way costless collars — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 16 (33)
Three-way costless collars — oil Gain (Loss) on Derivatives — (7)
Basis swaps — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (4) (29)
Call options — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives — (7)
Sold put options - natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives (10) —
Purchased put options — natural gas Gain (Loss) on Derivatives 10 —
Total gain (loss) on settled derivatives 156 $ (123)
Total gain (loss) on derivatives @ 126 $ 1,401

(1) The Company calculates gain (loss) on derivatives, settled, as the summation of gains and losses on positions that settled within the period.

(2) Total gain (loss) on derivatives includes non-performance risk adjustments of $ 1 million in gains and $ 4 million in losses for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and

March 31, 2023, respectively.

Total Gain (Loss) on Derivatives Recognized in Earnings

For the three months ended

March 31,

2024 2023

(in millions)

Total gain (loss) on unsettled derivatives $ (31) $ 1,528

Total gain (loss) on settled derivatives 156 (123)

Non-performance risk adjustment 1 (4)
Total gain (loss) on derivatives $ 126 $ 1,401

(7) RECLASSIFICATIONS FROM ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following tables detail the components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) for the three months ended March 31, 2024:

(in millions) Other Postretirement Foreign Currency Total
Beginning balance December 31, 2023 $ 1 $ (14) $ (3)
Other comprehensive income before reclassifications — — —
Amounts reclassified from other comprehensive income® 2 — 2
Net current-period other comprehensive income 2 — 2
Ending balance March 31, 2024 $ 13 $ (14) s (1)

(1) Includes a $ 2 million actuarial gain related to the other postretirement plan.
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(8) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 were as
follows:

March 31, 2024 December 31, 2023
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in millions) Amount Value Amount Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29 $ 29 $ 21 $ 21
2022 revolving credit facility due April 2027 270 270 220 220
Senior notes @ 3,743 3,599 3,743 3,626
Derivative instruments, net 580 580 610 610

(1) Excludes unamortized debt issuance costs and debt discounts.

The fair value hierarchy prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. As presented in the tables below, this hierarchy
consists of three broad levels:

Level 1 valuations - Consist of unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities and have the highest priority.
Level 2 valuations - Consist of quoted market information for the calculation of fair market value.
Level 3 valuations - Consist of internal estimates and have the lowest priority.

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, including marketable securities, accounts receivable, other current assets, accounts payable and
other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets approximate fair value because of their short-term nature. For debt and derivative instruments,
the following methods and assumptions were used to estimate fair value:

Debt: The fair values of the Company’s senior notes are based on the market value of the Company’s publicly traded debt as determined based on
the market prices of the Company’s senior notes. The fair values of the Company’s senior notes are considered to be a Level 1 measurement as these
are actively traded in the market. The carrying value of the borrowings under the Company’s 2022 credit facility (as defined in Note 9 below), to the
extent utilized, approximates fair value because the interest rates are variable and reflective of market rates. The Company considers the fair value of its
2022 credit facility to be a Level 1 measurement on the fair value hierarchy.

Derivative Instruments: The Company measures the fair value of its derivative instruments based upon a pricing model that utilizes market-based
inputs, including, but not limited to, the contractual price of the underlying position, current market prices, natural gas and liquids forward curves, discount
rates for a similar duration of each outstanding position, volatility factors and non-performance risk. Non-performance risk considers the effect of the
Company’s credit standing on the fair value of derivative liabilities and the effect of counterparty credit standing on the fair value of derivative assets.
Both inputs to the model are based on published credit default swap rates and the duration of each outstanding derivative position. The Company’s net
derivative position was a net asset as of March 31, 2024 and as of December 31, 2023. As of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, the impact of the
non-performance risk on the fair value of the Company’s net derivative position resulted in a reduction to the net asset of $ 1 million and $ 2 million,
respectively.

The Company has classified its derivative instruments into levels depending upon the data utilized to determine their fair values. The Company’s
fixed price swaps (Level 2) are estimated using third-party discounted cash flow calculations using the New York Mercantile Exchange (“NYMEX”) futures
index for natural gas and oil derivatives and Oil Price Information Service (“OPIS”) for ethane and propane derivatives.

The Company'’s call and put options, two-way costless collars and three-way costless collars (Level 2) are valued using the Black-Scholes model, an
industry standard option valuation model that takes into account inputs such as contract terms, including maturity, and market parameters, including
assumptions of the NYMEX and OPIS futures index, interest rates, volatility and credit worthiness. Inputs to the Black-Scholes model, including the
volatility input, are obtained from a third-party pricing source, with independent verification of the most significant inputs on a monthly basis. An increase
(decrease) in volatility would result in an increase (decrease) in fair value measurement, respectively.

The Company'’s basis swaps (Level 2) are estimated using third-party calculations based upon forward commodity price curves.
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Assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

(in millions)

Assets
Fixed price swaps
Two-way costless collars
Three-way costless collars
Basis swaps

Liabilities
Fixed price swaps
Two-way costless collars
Three-way costless collars
Basis swaps

Call options

Total

March 31, 2024

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices in
Active Markets (Level

Significant Other
Observable Inputs (Level

Significant Unobservable

Assets (Liabilities)

1) 2) Inputs (Level 3) at Fair Value

$ — 8 512 $ — 3 512
— 71 — 71
— 180 - 180
— 9 - 9
— (54) — (54)
— (15) — (15)
— (89) — (89)
— (18) — (18)
— (15) — (15)

$ — 8 581 $ — 8 581

(1) Excludes a net reduction to the asset fair value of $ 1 million related to estimated non-performance risk.

(in millions)
Assets
Fixed price swaps
Two-way costless collars
Three-way costless collars
Basis swaps
Purchase Put - Natural Gas
Liabilities
Fixed price swaps
Two-way costless collars
Three-way costless collars
Basis swaps
Call options
Put options

Total ®

December 31, 2023

Fair Value Measurements Using:

Quoted Prices in

Active Markets (Level Significant Other Significant Unobservable  Assets (Liabilities) at
1) Observable Inputs (Level 2) Inputs (Level 3) Fair Value

$ —  $ 491 $ — 3% 491
s 85 — 85
— 189 — 189
s 18 — 18
— 8 — 8
- (21) — (21)
— (30) — (30)
— (96) = (96)
— (6) — (6)
— (18) — (18)
— (8) — (8)

$ — 3 612 $ — 8 612

(1) Excludes a net reduction to the asset fair value of $ 2 million related to estimated non-performance risk.
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(9) DEBT

The components of debt as of March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023 consisted of the following:

March 31, 2024

Unamortized Issuance

Unamortized Debt

(in millions) Debt Instrument Expense Premium/Discount Total
Current portion of long-term debt:
4.95 % Senior Notes due January 2025 ) $ 389 $ = $ — 389
Total current portion of long-term debt $ 389 $ — $ — 389
Long-term debt:
Variable rate ( 7.16 % at March 31, 2024) $ 270 $ — @ $ — 270
2022 revolving credit facility, due April 2027
8.375 % Senior Notes due September 2028 304 (3) — 301
5.375 % Senior Notes due February 2029 700 (4) 17 713
5.375 % Senior Notes due March 2030 1,200 (12) — 1,188
4.75 % Senior Notes due February 2032 1,150 (13) — 1,137
Total long-term debt $ 3,624 $ (32) $ 17 3,609
Total debt $ 4,013 $ (32) $ 17 3,998
December 31, 2023
Unamortized Issuance Unamortized Debt
(in millions) Debt Instrument Expense Premium/Discount Total
Variable rate ( 7.20 % at December 31, 2023) 2022 revolving $ 220 $ — @ 3 — 220
credit facility, due April 2027
4.95 % Senior Notes due January 2025 @ 389 — — 389
8.375 % Senior Notes due September 2028 304 (3) — 301
5.375 % Senior Notes due February 2029 700 (5) 18 713
5.375 % Senior Notes due March 2030 1,200 (13) — 1,187
4.75 % Senior Notes due February 2032 1,150 (13) — 1,137
Total debt $ 3,963 $ (34) $ 18 3,947

(1) Effective in July 2018, the interest rate was 6.20 % for the 2025 Notes, reflecting a net downgrade in the Company’s bond ratings since their issuance. On April 7, 2020, S&P

downgraded the Company’s bond rating to BB-, which had the effect of increasing the interest rate on the 2025 Notes to 6.45 % following the July 23, 2020 interest payment due

date. The first coupon payment to the bondholders at the higher interest rate was paid in January 2021. On September 1, 2021, S&P upgraded the Company’s bond rating to

BB, and on January 6, 2022, S&P further upgraded the Company’s bond rating to BB+, which decreased the interest rate on the 2025 Notes to 5.95 % beginning with coupon

payments paid after January 2022. On May 31, 2022, Moody’s upgraded the Company’s bond rating to Bal, which decreased the interest rate on the 2025 Notes from 5.95 % to

5.70 % for coupon payments paid after July 2022.

(2) At March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, unamortized issuance expense of $ 14 million and $ 15 million, respectively, associated with the 2022 credit facility (as defined

below) was classified as other long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheets.

The following is a summary of scheduled debt maturities by year as of March 31, 2024:

(in millions)
2024
2025
2026
2027
2028

Thereafter
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270
304
3,050
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Credit Facilities

2022 Credit Facility

On April 8, 2022, the Company entered into an Amended and Restated Credit Agreement that replaces its previous credit facility, that as amended,
has a maturity date of April 2027 (the “2022 credit facility”). As of March 31, 2024, the 2022 credit facility has an aggregate maximum revolving credit
amount and borrowing base of $ 3.5 billion and elected five-year revolving commitments of $ 2.0 billion (the “Five-Year Tranche”). The borrowing base is
subject to redetermination at least twice a year, which typically occurs in April and October, and is secured by substantially all of the assets owned by the
Company and its subsidiaries. On March 29, 2024, the Company’'s borrowing base was reaffirmed at $ 3.5 billion and the Five-Year Tranche was
reaffirmed at $ 2.0 billion with a maturity date of April 8, 2027.

Effective August 4, 2022, the Company elected to temporarily increase commitments under the 2022 credit facility by $ 500 million (the “Short-Term
Tranche”) as a temporary working capital liquidity resource. The Company had no borrowings under the Short-Term Tranche which expired on April 30,
2023 and was not renewed.

The Company may utilize the 2022 credit facility in the form of loans and letters of credit. Loans under the Five-Year Tranche of the 2022 credit
facility are subject to varying rates of interest based on whether the loan is a Secured Overnight Financing Rate (“SOFR”) loan or an alternate base rate
loan. Term SOFR loans bear interest at term SOFR plus an applicable rate ranging from 1.75 % to 2.75 % based on the Company’s utilization of the
Five-Year Tranche of the 2022 credit facility, plus a 0.10 % credit spread adjustment. Base rate loans bear interest at a base rate per year equal to the
greatest of: (i) the prime rate; (ii) the federal funds effective rate plus 0.50 %; and (iii) the adjusted term SOFR rate for a one-month interest period plus
1.00 %, plus an applicable margin ranging from 0.75 % to 1.75 %, depending on the percentage of the commitments utilized. Commitment fees on
unused commitment amounts under the Five-Year Tranche of the 2022 credit facility range between 0.375 % to 0.50 %, depending on the percentage of
the commitments utilized.

The 2022 credit facility contains customary representations and warranties and covenants including, among others, the following:
« a prohibition against incurring debt, subject to permitted exceptions;

« arestriction on creating liens on assets, subject to permitted exceptions;

« restrictions on mergers and asset dispositions;

« restrictions on use of proceeds, investments, declaring dividends, repurchasing junior debt, transactions with affiliates, or change of principal
business; and

» maintenance of the following financial covenants, commencing with the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2022:

1. Minimum current ratio of no less than 1.00 to 1.00, whereby current ratio is defined as the Company’s consolidated current assets (including
unused commitments under the credit agreement, but excluding non-cash derivative assets) to consolidated current liabilities (excluding
non-cash derivative obligations and current maturities of long-term debt).

2. Maximum total net leverage ratio of no greater than, with respect to the prior four fiscal quarters ending on or after March 31, 2022, 4.00 to
1.00. Total net leverage ratio is defined as total debt less cash on hand (up to the lesser of 10 % of credit limit or $ 150 million) divided by
consolidated EBITDAX for the last four consecutive quarters. Consolidated EBITDAX, as defined in the credit agreement governing the
Company’s 2022 credit facility, excludes the effects of interest expense, depreciation, depletion and amortization, income tax, any non-cash
impacts from impairments, certain non-cash hedging activities, stock-based compensation expense, non-cash gains or losses on asset
sales, unamortized issuance cost, unamortized debt discount and certain restructuring costs.

The 2022 credit facility contains customary events of default that include, among other things, the failure to comply with the financial covenants
described above, non-payment of principal, interest or fees, violation of covenants, inaccuracy of representations and warranties, bankruptcy and
insolvency events, material judgments and cross-defaults to material indebtedness. If an event of default occurs and is continuing, all amounts
outstanding under the 2022 credit facility may become
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immediately due and payable. As of March 31, 2024, the Company was in compliance with all of the covenants of the credit agreement in all material
respects.

Currently, each United States domestic subsidiary of the Company for which the Company owns 100 % of its equity guarantees the 2022 credit
facility. Pursuant to requirements under the indentures governing its senior notes, each subsidiary that became a guarantor of the 2022 credit facility also
became a guarantor of each of the Company’s senior notes.

Certain features of the facility depend on whether Southwestern has obtained any of the following ratings:
« An unsecured long-term debt credit rating (an “Index Debt Rating”) of BBB- or higher with S&P;
¢ An Index Debt Rating of Baa3 or higher with Moody’s; or

« An Index Debt Rating of BBB- or higher with Fitch (each of the foregoing an “Investment Grade Rating”).

Upon receiving one Investment Grade Rating from either S&P or Moody’s and delivering a certification to the administrative agent (the period
beginning at such time, an “Interim Investment Grade Period”), amongst other changes, the following occurs:

¢ The Guarantors may be released from their guarantees;

» The collateral under the facility will be released;

« The facility will no longer be subject to a borrowing base; and

« Certain title and collateral-related covenants will no longer be applicable.

During the Interim Investment Grade Period, the Company will be required to maintain compliance with the existing financial covenants as well as a
PV-9 coverage ratio of the net present value, discounted at 9 % per annum, of the estimated future net revenues expected in the proved reserves to the
Company’s total indebtedness as of such date of not less than 1.50 to 1.00 (“PV-9 Coverage Ratio”). In addition, during an Interim Investment Grade
Period or Investment Grade Period (as defined below), term SOFR loans will bear interest at term SOFR plus an applicable rate ranging from 1.25 % to
1.875 %, depending on the Company’s Index Debt Rating (as defined in the 2022 credit facility), plus an additional 0.10 % credit spread adjustment.
Base rate loans will bear interest at the base rate described above plus an applicable rate ranging from 0.25 % to 0.875 %, depending on the Company’s
Index Debt Rating. During an Interim Investment Grade Period or Investment Grade Period (defined below), the commitment fee on unused commitment
amounts under the facility will range from 0.15 % to 0.275 %, depending on the Company’s Index Debt Rating.

The Interim Investment Grade Period will end, and the facility will revert to its characteristics prior to the Interim Investment Grade Period, including
being guaranteed by the Guarantors, being secured by collateral and being subject to a borrowing base, having applicable margins and commitment fee
determined based on percentage of commitments utilized, as well as limited to compliance with the leverage ratio and current ratio financial covenants
but not the PV-9 Coverage Ratio if both of the following are achieved during the Interim Investment Grade Period:

* An Index Debt Rating from Moody’s that is Ba2 or lower; and
* An Index Debt Rating from S&P that is BB or lower.

Upon receiving two Investment Grade Ratings from S&P, Moody’s, or Fitch (such period following, an “Investment Grade Period”), certain restrictive
covenants fall away or become more permissive. Upon Investment Grade Period, the leverage ratio and current ratio financial covenants and PV-9
Coverage Ratio will no longer be effective, and the Company will be required to maintain compliance with a total indebtedness to capitalization ratio,
which is the ratio of the Company’s total indebtedness to the sum of total indebtedness plus stockholders’ equity, not to exceed 65 %.

As of March 31, 2024, the Company had no outstanding letters of credit and $ 270 million in borrowings outstanding under the 2022 credit facility.
The Company currently does not anticipate being required to supply a materially greater amount of letters of credit under its existing contracts.

Senior Notes

In January 2015, the Company completed a public offering of $ 1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of its 4.95 % Senior Notes due 2025 (the
“2025 Notes”). The interest rate on the 2025 Notes is determined based upon the public bond ratings from Moody’s and S&P. Downgrades on the 2025
Notes from either rating agency increase interest costs by 25 basis points per downgrade level and upgrades decrease interest costs by 25 basis points
per upgrade level, up to the stated coupon rate, on the following semi-annual bond interest payment. Effective in July 2018, the interest rate for the 2025
Notes was 6.20 %, reflecting a net downgrade in the Company’s bond ratings since their issuance. On April 7, 2020, S&P downgraded the Company’s
bond
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rating to BB-, which had the effect of increasing the interest rate on the 2025 Notes to 6.45 % following the July 23, 2020 interest payment due date. The
first coupon payment to the 2025 Notes bondholders at the higher interest rate was paid in January 2021. On September 1, 2021, S&P upgraded the
Company’s bond rating to BB, and on January 6, 2022, S&P further upgraded the Company’s bond rating to BB+, which decreased the interest rate on
the 2025 Notes to 5.95 % beginning with coupon payments paid after January 2022. On May 31, 2022, Moody’s upgraded the Company’s bond rating to
Bal, which decreased the interest rate on the 2025 Notes from 5.95 % to 5.70 % for coupon payments paid after July 2022.

On February 26, 2023, the Company redeemed all of its 7.75 % Senior Notes due October 2027 (the “2027 Notes”) at a redemption price equal to
103.875 % of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest of $ 13 million for a total payment of $ 450 million. The Company recognized
a $ 19 million loss on the extinguishment of debt, which included the write-off of $ 3 million in related unamortized debt discounts and debt issuance
costs. The Company funded the redemption of the 2027 Notes using approximately $ 316 million of cash on hand and approximately $ 134 million of
borrowings under the 2022 credit facility.

(10) COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Operating Commitments and Contingencies

As of March 31, 2024, the Company’s contractual obligations for demand and similar charges under firm transportation and gathering agreements to
guarantee access capacity on natural gas and liquids pipelines and gathering systems totaled approximately $ 9.2 billion, $ 1.2 billion of which related to
access capacity on future pipeline and gathering infrastructure projects that still require the granting of regulatory approvals and additional construction
efforts. As of March 31, 2024, the Company also had guarantee obligations of up to $ 959 million of that total amount. As of March 31, 2024, future
payments under non-cancelable firm transportation and gathering agreements are as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1 More than 8

(in millions) Total Year 1to 3 Years 3to 5 Years 5to 8 Years Years
Infrastructure currently in service $ 8,016 $ 1,030 $ 1,950 $ 1,698 $ 1634 $ 1,704
Pending regulatory approval and/or construction® 1,192 61 170 195 294 472
Total transportation charges $ 9,208 $ 1,091 $ 2,120 $ 1,893 $ 1,928 $ 2,176

(1) Based on estimated in-service dates as of March 31, 2024.
Environmental Risk

The Company is subject to laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment. Environmental and cleanup related costs of a non-
capital nature are accrued when it is both probable that a liability has been incurred and when the amount can be reasonably estimated. Management
believes any future remediation or other compliance related costs will not have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or cash
flows of the Company.

Litigation

The Company is subject to various litigation, claims and proceedings, most of which have arisen in the ordinary course of business, such as for
alleged breaches of contract, miscalculation of royalties, employment matters, traffic accidents, pollution, contamination, encroachment on others’
property or nuisance. The Company accrues for litigation, claims and proceedings when a liability is both probable and the amount can be reasonably
estimated. As of March 31, 2024, the Company does not currently have any material amounts accrued related to litigation matters, including the case
discussed below. For any matters not accrued for, it is not possible at this time to estimate the amount of any additional loss, or range of loss, that is
reasonably possible, but, based on the nature of the claims, management believes that current litigation, claims and proceedings, individually or in
aggregate and after taking into account insurance, are not likely to have a material adverse impact on the Company’s financial position, results of
operations or cash flows, for the period in which the effect of that outcome becomes reasonably estimable. Many of these matters are in early stages, so
the allegations and the damage theories have not been fully developed, and are all subject to inherent uncertainties; therefore, management’s view may
change in the future.

Bryant Litigation

On September 1, 2021, the Company completed a merger with Indigo Natural Resources LLC (“Indigo”) resulting in the assumption of Indigo’s
existing litigation.

On June 12, 2018, a collection of 51 individuals and entities filed a lawsuit against fifteen oil and gas company defendants, including Indigo, in
Louisiana state court claiming damages arising out of current and historical exploration and production activity on certain acreage located in DeSoto
Parish, Louisiana. The plaintiffs, who claim to own the properties at issue, assert
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that Indigo’s actions and the actions of other current operators conducting exploration and production activity, combined with the improper plugging and
abandoning of legacy wells by former operators, have caused environmental contamination to their properties. Among other things, the plaintiffs contend
that the defendants’ conduct resulted in the migration of natural gas, along with oilfield contaminants, into the Carrizo-Wilcox aquifer system underlying
certain portions of DeSoto Parish. The plaintiffs assert claims based in tort, breach of contract and for violations of the Louisiana Civil and Mineral Codes,
and they seek injunctive relief and monetary damages, including punitive damages.

On September 13, 2018, Indigo and other defendants filed a variety of exceptions in response to the plaintiffs’ petition in this matter. Since the initial
filing, supplemental petitions have been filed joining additional individuals and entities as plaintiffs in the matter. On September 29, 2020, plaintiffs filed
their fourth supplemental and amending petition in response to the court’s order ruling that plaintiffs’ claims were improperly vague and failed to identify
with reasonable specificity the defendants’ allegedly wrongful conduct. Indigo and the majority of the other defendants filed several exceptions to
plaintiffs’ fourth amended petition challenging the sufficiency of plaintiffs’ allegations and seeking dismissal of certain claims. On February 18, 2021,
plaintiffs filed a fifth supplemental and amending petition, which seeks to augment the claims of select plaintiffs. On October 11, 2021, a sixth
supplemental petition was filed which seeks to add the Company as a party to the litigation which the Company has opposed. Plaintiffs later filed seventh
and eighth supplemental petitions naming additional defendants. The parties are currently engaging in settlement discussions.

The presence of natural gas in a localized area of the Carrizo-Wilcox aquifer system in DeSoto Parish is currently the subject of a regulatory
investigation by the Louisiana Office of Conservation (“Conservation”), and the Company is cooperating and coordinating with Conservation in that
investigation. The Conservation matter number is EMER18-003.

The Company does not currently expect this matter to have a material impact on its financial position, results of operations, cash flows or liquidity.
Indemnifications

The Company has provided certain indemnifications to various third parties, including in relation to asset and entity dispositions, securities offerings
and other financings. In the case of asset dispositions, these indemnifications typically relate to disputes, litigation or tax matters existing at the date of
disposition. The Company likewise obtains indemnification for future matters when it sells assets, although there is no assurance the buyer will be
capable of performing those obligations. In the case of equity offerings, these indemnifications typically relate to claims asserted against underwriters in
connection with an offering. No material liabilities have been recognized in connection with these indemnifications.

(11) INCOME TAXES

The Company'’s effective tax rate was approximately 22 % and 1 % for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively.
The effective tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2023 was primarily the result of the partial release of the valuation allowances against the
Company’s U.S. deferred tax assets in the first quarter of 2023. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, including net operating losses (“NOLs"), is
recognized when it is more likely than not that some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax assets will not be realized. To assess that likelihood, the
Company uses estimates and judgment regarding future taxable income and considers the tax consequences in the jurisdiction where such taxable
income is generated, to determine whether a valuation allowance is required. Such evidence can include current financial position, results of operations,
both actual and forecasted, the reversal of deferred tax liabilities and tax planning strategies as well as current and forecasted business economics of the
oil and gas industry.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company maintained a full valuation allowance against its deferred tax assets based on its conclusion,
considering all available evidence (both positive and negative), that it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would not be realized. A
significant item of objective negative evidence considered was the cumulative pre-tax loss incurred over the three-year period ended December 31,
2022, primarily due to impairments of proved oil and gas properties recognized in 2020. As of the first quarter of 2023, the Company sustained a three-
year cumulative level of profitability. Based on this factor and other positive evidence such as forecasted income, the Company concluded that $ 512
million of its federal and state deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized and released this portion of the valuation allowance throughout
2023. Accordingly, during the three months ended March 31, 2023, the Company recognized $ 451 million of deferred income tax expense related to
recording its tax provision which was partially offset by $ 439 million of tax benefit attributable to the release of the valuation allowance. The remaining
valuation allowance was released during subsequent quarters during 2023. The Company expects to keep a valuation allowance of $ 52 million related to
NOLs in jurisdictions in which it no longer operates and against the portion of its federal and state deferred tax assets such as capital losses and interest
carryovers, which may expire before being fully utilized due to the application of the limitations under Section 382 and the ordering in which such
attributes may be applied.
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Due to the issuance of common stock associated with the Indigo merger in September 2021, the Company incurred a cumulative ownership change
and as such, the Company’s NOLSs prior to the acquisition are subject to an annual limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 of approximately
$ 48 million. The ownership changes and resulting annual limitation will result in the expiration of NOLs or other tax attributes otherwise available. At
March 31, 2024, the Company had approximately $ 4 billion of federal NOL carryovers, of which approximately $ 3 billion expire between 2035 and 2037
and $ 1 billion have an indefinite carryforward life. The Company currently estimates that approximately $ 2 billion of these federal NOLs will expire
before they are able to be used and accordingly, no value has been ascribed to these NOLs on the Company’s balance sheet. If a subsequent ownership
change were to occur as a result of future transactions in the Company’s common stock, the Company’s use of remaining U.S. tax attributes may be
further limited.

The Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (the “IRA") was enacted on August 16, 2022 and may impact how the U.S. taxes certain large corporations. The
IRA imposes a 15% alternative minimum tax on the “adjusted financial statement income” of certain large corporations (generally, corporations reporting
at least $1 billion average adjusted pre-tax net income on their consolidated financial statements) for tax years beginning after December 31, 2022. The
Company was not impacted by the alternative minimum tax during 2023 and does not expect to be impacted by this alternative minimum tax during 2024.
The Company will continue to monitor updates to the IRA and the impact it will have on the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(12) LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION

The Company’s long-term incentive compensation plans consist of a combination of stock-based awards that derive their value directly or indirectly
from the Company’s common stock price, and cash-based awards that are fixed in amount but subject to meeting annual performance thresholds.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company’s stock-based compensation is classified as either equity awards or liability awards in accordance with GAAP. The fair value of an
equity-classified award is determined at the grant date and is amortized to general and administrative expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period of the award. A portion of this general and administrative expense is capitalized into natural gas and oil properties, included in property and
equipment. The fair value of a liability-classified award is determined on a quarterly basis beginning at the grant date until final vesting. Changes in the
fair value of liability-classified awards are recorded to general and administrative expense and capitalized expense over the vesting period of the award.
Generally, stock options granted to employees and directors vest ratably over three years from the grant date and expire 10 years from the date of grant.
However, the Company has not granted stock options since 2017. The Company issues shares of restricted stock and restricted stock units to employees
and directors which generally vest over three years .

Restricted stock, restricted stock units and stock options granted under the Southwestern Energy Company 2022 Incentive Plan (the “2022 Plan”)
immediately vest upon death, disability or retirement (subject to a minimum of three years of service). To the extent no provision is made in connection
with a “change in control” (as defined in the 2022 Plan) for the assumption of awards previously granted under the 2022 Plan or there is no substitution of
such awards for new awards, then (i) outstanding time-based awards will become fully vested, and (ii) each outstanding performance-based award will
vest with respect to the number of shares of common stock underlying such award or the amount of cash underlying the award eligible to vest based on
performance during the performance period that includes the date of the change in control, prorated for the number of days which have elapsed during
the performance period prior to the change in control. To the extent an award is assumed or substituted in connection with the change in control, if a
participant is terminated by the Company without “cause” or the participant resigns for “good reason” (each as defined in the 2022 Plan) within 12 months
following a change in control, then (i) each time-based award will become fully vested, and (ii) each outstanding performance-based award will vest
based on performance during the performance period that includes the date of the change in control, prorated for the number of days which have
elapsed during the performance period prior to such termination.

The Company issues performance unit awards to employees which historically have vested at or over three years . The performance units granted in
2021, 2022, and 2023 cliff-vest at the end of three years . There were no performance unit awards granted as of March 31, 2024.
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The Company recognized the following amounts in total related to long-term incentive compensation costs for the three months ended March 31,
2024 and 2023:

For the three months ended March

31,
(in millions) 2024 2023
Long-term incentive compensation — expensed $ 1 3 4
Long-term incentive compensation — capitalized $ 6 $ 3

Equity-Classified Awards

The Company recognized the following amounts in employee equity-classified stock-based compensation costs for the three months ended
March 31, 2024 and 2023:

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2024 2023
Equity-classified awards — expensed $ 7 $ 1
Equity-classified awards — capitalized $ 3 3 1

Equity-Classified Stock Options

The following table summarizes equity-classified stock option activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and provides information for
options outstanding and options exercisable as of March 31, 2024:

Number Weighted Average
of Options Exercise Price

(in thousands)
Outstanding at December 31, 2023 820 8.59
Granted —
Exercised —

Forfeited or expired (820)

Outstanding at March 31, 2024 —

® v B B B
|

Exercisable at March 31, 2024 —

Equity-Classified Restricted Stock

As of March 31, 2024, there was less than $ 1 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the Company’s unvested equity-classified
restricted stock grants. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.1 year. The following table summarizes equity-
classified restricted stock activity for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and provides information for unvested shares as of March 31, 2024:

Number Weighted Average
of Shares Fair Value

(in thousands)

Unvested shares at December 31, 2023 169 $ 5.09
Granted — % —
Vested (54) $ 4.90
Forfeited — 3 —
Unvested shares at March 31, 2024 115 s 5.17
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Equity-Classified Restricted Stock Units

As of March 31, 2024, there was $ 20 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the Company’s unvested equity-classified restricted
stock units. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.4 years. The following table summarizes equity-classified
restricted stock units for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and provides information for unvested units as of March 31, 2024.

Number Weighted Average
of Shares Fair Value

(in thousands)

Unvested units at December 31, 2023 2,706 $ 4.74
Granted 3,182 $ 7.10
Vested (1,084) $ 4.69
Forfeited — 8 —
Unvested units at March 31, 2024 4,804 s 6.32

Equity-Classified Performance Units

In each year from 2018 to 2023, the Company granted performance units that vest at the end of, or over, a three-year period and are payable in
either cash or shares. The performance units granted from 2020 through 2021 were accounted for as liability-classified awards as further described
below. In 2022 and 2023, two types of performance units were granted. The first type of awards were liability-classified given the awards are payable only
in cash as prescribed under the compensation agreements. The second type of awards granted during 2022 and 2023 have been accounted for as
equity-classified awards given the intention to settle these awards in stock. The equity-classified awards were recognized at their fair value as of the grant
date and are amortized throughout the vesting period. The 2022 and 2023 performance unit awards include a market condition based on relative TSR (as
defined below). No performance units were granted as of March 31, 2024. The fair values of the market conditions were calculated by Monte Carlo
models as of the grant date. As of March 31, 2024, there was $ 5 million of total unrecognized compensation costs related to the Company’s unvested
equity-classified performance units. This cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.6 years.

Number Weighted Average
of Shares Fair Value

(in thousands)

Unvested units at December 31, 2023 1,757 $ 6.08
Granted — 8 —
Vested — 3 =
Forfeited — % —
Unvested units at March 31, 2024 1,757 s 6.08

Liability-Classified Awards

The Company recognized the following amounts in employee liability-classified stock-based compensation costs for the three months ended
March 31, 2024:

For the three months ended March

31,
(in millions) 2024 2023
Liability-classified stock-based compensation cost — expensed $ 1 S i
Liability-classified stock-based compensation cost — capitalized $ — 3 —
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Liability-Classified Restricted Stock Units

In each year from 2018 to 2020, the Company granted restricted stock units that vest over a period of four years and are payable in either cash or
shares at the option of the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board. The liability-classified awards granted in 2021 vest over a period of three
years . The Company has accounted for these as liability-classified awards, and accordingly changes in the market value of the instruments will be
recorded to general and administrative expense and capitalized expense over the vesting period of the award. As of March 31, 2024, the liability-
classified restricted stock units fully vested.

Number Weighted Average
of Units Fair Value

(in thousands)

Unvested units at December 31, 2023 1,741  $ 4.67
Granted — 8 —
Vested (1,741) $ 6.93
Forfeited — 8 —
Unvested units at March 31, 2024 — 8 =

Liability-Classified Performance Units

In each year from 2018 to 2023, the Company granted performance units that vest at the end of, or over, a three-year period and are payable in
either cash or shares. The performance units granted in 2020 vest over athree-year period and are payable in cash as prescribed under the
compensation agreements and have been accounted for as liability-classified awards. The Company granted two types of performance units in 2021 that
vest over a three-year period. One type is payable in cash as prescribed under the compensation agreements and the other type is payable in either
cash or stock at the option of the Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board. Both award types have been accounted for as liability-classified
awards. The Company granted two types of performance units in 2022 and 2023 that vest over a three-year period. For both 2022 and 2023, one type of
award is payable in cash as prescribed under the compensation agreements and has been liability-classified while the other type is equity-classified as
further discussed above. No performance units were granted as of March 31, 2024. Changes in the fair market value of the instruments for liability-
classified awards are recorded to general and administrative expense and capitalized expense over the vesting period of the awards.

The performance units granted in 2020 include a performance condition based on return on average capital employed and a market condition based
on relative total shareholder return (“TSR”). In 2021, of the two types of performance units granted, the first type of award includes a performance
condition based on return on capital employed and a performance condition based on reinvestment rate, and the second type of award includes one
market condition based on relative TSR. The liability-classified performance units granted in 2022 and 2023 include performance conditions based on
return on capital employed and reinvestment rate. The fair values of all market conditions discussed above are calculated by Monte Carlo models on a
guarterly basis.

As of March 31, 2024, there was $ 3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to liability-classified performance units. This cost is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 1.8 years. The amount of unrecognized compensation cost for liability-classified awards will
fluctuate over time as they are marked to market. The final value of the performance unit awards is contingent upon the Company’s actual performance
against these performance measures.

Number Weighted Average
of Units Fair Value

(in thousands)

Unvested units at December 31, 2023 12,152  $ 0.94
Granted — 3 —
Vested (3365) $ 1.59
Forfeited — 3 —
Unvested units at March 31, 2024 8,787 3 0.55
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Cash-Based Compensation

The Company recognized the following amounts in performance cash award compensation costs for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and
2023:

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2024 2023
Performance cash awards — expensed $ 3 $ 2
Performance cash awards — capitalized $ 3 8 2

Performance Cash Awards

From 2020 through 2022 the Company granted performance cash awards that vest over a four-year period and are payable in cash on an annual
basis. In 2023 and 2024, the Company granted performance cash awards that vest over a three-year period and are payable in cash on an annual basis.
The value of each unit of the award equals one dollar. The Company recognizes the cost of these awards as general and administrative expense and
capitalized expense over the vesting period of the awards. The performance cash awards granted from 2020 through 2024 include a performance
condition determined annually by the Company. For all years, the performance measure is a targeted discretionary cash flow amount. If the Company, in
its sole discretion, determines that the threshold was not met, the amount for that vesting period will not vest and will be cancelled. As of March 31, 2024,
there was $ 54 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to performance cash awards. This cost is expected to be recognized over a
weighted-average period of 2.3 years. The final value of the performance cash awards is contingent upon the Company’s actual performance against
these performance measures.

Number Weighted Average Fair
of Units Value

(in thousands)

Unvested units at December 31, 2023 49,678 $ 1.00
Granted 28,202 $ 1.00
Vested (20,232) $ 1.00
Forfeited (364) $ 1.00
Unvested units at March 31, 2024 57,284 $ 1.00

(13) SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company’s reportable business segments have been identified based on the differences in products or services provided. The Company’'s E&P
segment is comprised of gas and oil properties which are managed as a whole rather than through discrete operating segments. Operational information
for the Company’s E&P segment is tracked by geographic area; however, financial performance and allocation of resources are assessed at the segment
level without regard to geographic area. Revenues for the E&P segment are derived from the production and sale of natural gas and liquids. The
Marketing segment generates revenue through the marketing of both Company and third-party produced natural gas and liquids volumes.

Summarized financial information for the Company’s reportable segments is shown in the following table. The accounting policies of the segments
are the same as those described in Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of the 2023 Annual Report. Management
evaluates the performance of its segments based on operating income, defined as operating revenues less operating costs. Income before income taxes,
for the purpose of reconciling the operating income amount shown below to consolidated income before income taxes, is the sum of operating income,
interest expense, gain (loss) on derivatives, gain on early extinguishment of debt and other income (loss). The “Other” column includes items not related
to the Company’s reportable segments, including real estate and corporate items. Corporate general and administrative costs, depreciation expense and
taxes, other than income taxes, are allocated to the segments.
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Exploration and

Total Reportable

Production Marketing Segments Other Total
Three months ended March 31, 2024 (in millions)
Revenues from external customers $ 838 579 $ 1,417 $ — 1,417
Intersegment revenues (14) 798 784 — 784
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense 261 1 262 — 262
Impairments 2,093 — 2,093 — 2,093
Operating income (loss) (2,061) 4 (2,057) — (2,057)
Interest expense 35 — 35 — 35
Gain on derivatives 126 — 126 — 126
Other income, net 1 — 1 — 1
Benefit for income taxes (430) — (430) — (430)
Assets 9,856 @ 391 10,247 151 10,398
Capital investments ¢ 537 — 537 1 538
Three months ended March 31, 2023
Revenues from external customers $ 1,439 $ 679 $ 2,118 $ — $ 2,118
Intersegment revenues (10) 1,362 1,352 — 1,352
Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense 312 1 313 — 313
Operating income 578 28 606 — 606
Interest expense 36 — 36 — 36
Gain on derivatives 1,401 — 1,401 — 1,401
Loss on early extinguishment of debt — — — (19) (19)
Other loss, net (1) — (1) — (1)
Provision for income taxes® 12 — 12 — 12
Assets 12,260 @ 552 12,812 125 12,937
Capital investments 664 — 664 1 665

(1) Interest expense and provision (benefit) for income taxes by segment is an allocation of corporate amounts as they are incurred at the corporate level.

(2) E&P assets includes office, technology, water infrastructure, drilling rigs and other ancillary equipment not directly related to natural gas and oil properties. This also includes

deferred tax assets which are an allocation of corporate amounts as they are incurred at the corporate level.

(3) Capital investments include an increase of $ 14 million and a decrease $ 6 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively, relating to the

change in accrued expenditures between periods.

The following table presents the breakout of other assets, which represent corporate assets not allocated to segments and assets for non-reportable
segments as of March 31, 2024 and 2023:

As of March 31,

(in millions) 2024 2023
Cash and cash equivalents $ 29 % 3
Accounts receivable — 1
Prepayments 15 12
Other current assets 1 —
Property, plant and equipment 23 19
Unamortized debt expense 14 18
Right-of-use lease assets a7 55
Non-qualified retirement plan 2 2
Other long-term assets ) 20 15
$ 151  $ 125

(1) Consists primarily of costs associated with the development of the Company’s enterprise resource technology as of March 31, 2024 and residual assets associated with the

Company'’s pension plan as of March 31, 2023, respectively.

(14) NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
New Accounting Standards Implemented in this Report

None.
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New Accounting Standards Not Yet Adopted in this Report

In November 2023, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the “FASB”) issued ASU 2023-07, Segment Reporting (Topic 280): Improvements to
Reportable Segment Disclosures. This update is to enhance disclosures on reportable segments and provide additional detailed information about
significant segment expenses. The guidance in ASU 2023-07 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023 and interim periods within
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company continues to assess the impact of the new guidance, but it is not expected to have a
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09 Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This update is to enhance
disclosures through further disaggregated information on the effective tax rate reconciliation based on specified categories, as well as disaggregation of
incomes taxes paid by jurisdiction. The guidance in ASU 2023-09 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2024. The Company
continues to assess the impact of the new guidance, but it is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following updates information as to Southwestern Energy Company’s financial condition provided in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2023 (the “2023 Annual Report”) and analyzes the changes in the results of operations between the three month periods
ended March 31, 2024 and 2023. For definitions of commonly used natural gas and oil terms used in this Quarterly Report, please refer to the “Glossary
of Certain Industry Terms” provided in our 2023 Annual Report.

The following discussion contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those
anticipated in forward-looking statements for many reasons, including the risks described in “Cautionary Statement About Forward-Looking Statements”
in the forepart of this Quarterly Report and in Item 1A, “Risk Factors” in Part | and elsewhere in our 2023 Annual Report. You should read the following
discussion with our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included in this Quarterly Report.

OVERVIEW
Proposed Merger with Chesapeake

On January 10, 2024, we entered into a Merger Agreement with Chesapeake, Merger Sub and LLC Sub, pursuant to which, among other things, we
will survive as a wholly owned subsidiary of Chesapeake. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, each eligible share of our common stock will be
converted into the right to receive 0.0867 shares of Chesapeake common stock. Completion of the Proposed Merger remains subject to certain
conditions, including the approval of the Proposed Merger by the our shareholders, approval by Chesapeake shareholders of the issuance of
Chesapeake common stock in connection with the Proposed Merger, as well as certain governmental and regulatory approvals. The Proposed Merger is
currently targeted to close in the second half of 2024; however, no assurance can be given as to when, or if, the Proposed Merger will occur.

The above description of the Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby, including certain referenced terms, is a summary of
certain principal terms and conditions contained in the Merger Agreement, a copy of which is attached as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company’s Current Report on
Form 8-K, filed January 11, 2024.

On April 4, 2024, Southwestern and Chesapeake each received a request for additional information and documentary material (collectively, the
“Second Request”) from the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC"), as disclosed in the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed April 5, 2024.
Issuance of the Second Request extends the waiting period imposed by the HSR Act until 30 days after each of Southwestern and Chesapeake have
substantially complied with the Second Request, unless the waiting period is earlier terminated. Southwestern and Chesapeake will continue to
cooperate fully with the FTC in its review.

See Note 1 - Basis of Presentation of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in “Item 1. Financial Statements” for additional
information. Also, see the risk factors and other cautionary statements, specifically, Risks Related to the Proposed Merger with Chesapeake under the
heading “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of our 2023 Annual Report.

Background

We are an independent energy company engaged in natural gas, oil and NGLs development, exploration and production, which we refer to as
“E&P.” We are also focused on creating and capturing additional value through our marketing business,
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which we call “Marketing”. We conduct most of our businesses through subsidiaries, and we currently operate exclusively in the Appalachian and
Haynesville natural gas basins in the lower 48 United States.

E&P. Our primary business is the development and production of natural gas as well as associated NGLs and oil, with our ongoing operations
focused on the development of unconventional natural gas reservoirs located in Pennsylvania, West Virginia, Ohio and Louisiana. Our operations in
Pennsylvania, West Virginia and Ohio, which we refer to as “Appalachia,” are focused on the Marcellus Shale, the Utica and the Upper Devonian
unconventional natural gas and liquids reservoirs. Our operations in Louisiana, which we refer to as “Haynesville,” are primarily focused on the
Haynesville and Bossier natural gas reservoirs and give us additional exposure to the LNG corridor and other markets on the U.S. Gulf Coast. We also
have drilling rigs located in Appalachia and Haynesville, and we provide certain oilfield products and services, principally serving our E&P operations
through vertical integration.

Marketing. Our marketing activities capture opportunities that arise through the marketing and transportation of natural gas, oil and NGLs primarily
produced in our E&P operations.

Recent Financial and Operating Results
Significant first quarter 2024 operating and financial results include:
Total Company

* Net loss of $1,535 million, or ($1.39) per diluted share, decreased compared to net income of $1,939 million, or $1.76 per diluted share, for the same
period in 2023. Net income decreased due to lower operating income of $2,663 million primarily associated with a full cost ceiling test impairment
write-down of $2,093 million along with lower realized pricing and production, and a reduced gain in our net derivative position of approximately
$1,275 million. The decrease in net income from the first quarter of 2023 to the first quarter of 2024 was partially offset by a decrease in our income
tax provision of $442 million and a $19 million loss on early debt extinguishment in 2023 compared to no gain or loss in 2024.

* Operating loss of $2,057 million decreased compared to operating income of $606 million for the same period in 2023 on a consolidated basis.
Operating income decreased due to a $701 million decrease in operating revenues, attributable to lower realized pricing and production in addition to
a full cost ceiling test impairment write-down of $2,093 million. The decrease in operating income from the first quarter of 2023 to the first quarter of
2024 was partially offset by lower operating costs of $131 million primarily associated with the impact of lower realized pricing and production on
marketing purchases and production taxes.

* Net cash provided by operating activities of $496 million decreased as compared to $1,137 million for the same period in 2023. The decrease was
primarily attributable to the impact of lower commodity pricing on revenues of $479 million, lower production of $126 million, and negative changes in
working capital of $307 million and was partially offset by an increase in our settled derivative positions of $279 million.

* Total capital investment of $538 million in the first quarter of 2024 decreased 19% from $665 million for the same period in 2023 primarily due to
lower activity levels associated with lower commodity pricing period over period.

E&P

* E&P operating loss of $2,061 million in the first quarter of 2024 decreased from operating income of $578 million in the first quarter of 2023 for a total
decrease of $2,639 million, primarily due to a $605 million decrease in E&P operating revenues resulting from a $1.28 per Mcfe decrease in our
realized weighted average price per Mcfe (excluding derivatives) and a 35 Bcfe decrease in production volumes. The decrease in operating income
was partially offset by a $59 million decrease in E&P operating costs and expenses, excluding $2,093 million of non-cash full cost ceiling test
impairments recognized during the first quarter of 2024.

* Total net production of 376 Bcfe, which was comprised of 86% natural gas and 14% oil and NGLs, decreased 9% from 411 Bcfe in the same period
in 2023, primarily due to an 8% decrease in our natural gas production as a result of lower activity period over period.

* Excluding the effect of derivatives, our realized natural gas price of $1.76 per Mcf decreased 45%, our realized oil price of $66.07 per barrel
increased slightly from $65.92 and our realized NGL price of $23.88 per barrel decreased 2%, as compared to the same period in 2023. Excluding
the effect of derivatives, our total weighted average realized price of $2.20 per Mcfe decreased 37% from the same period in 2023.

e E&P segment invested $537 million in capital; drilling 29 wells, completing 27 wells and placing 18 wells to sales.
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Outlook
Our primary focus in 2024 is to align capital investment with expected annual cash flow in a manner that maintains production capacity.
As we continue to develop our core positions in the Appalachian and Haynesville natural gas basins in the U.S., we will concentrate on:

¢ Creating Sustainable Value. We seek to create value for our stakeholders by allocating capital that is focused on earning economic returns and
optimizing the value of our assets; delivering sustainable free cash flow through the cycle; upgrading the quality and depth of our drilling inventory;
enhancing the capital efficiency of our operations; and converting resources to proved reserves.

* Protecting Financial Strength. We intend to protect our financial strength by lowering our leverage ratio and total debt; maintaining a strong liquidity
position and attractive debt maturity profile; improving our credit ratings; lowering our weighted average cost of debt; and deploying hedges to
balance revenue protection with commodity upside exposure.

e Progressing Execution. We are focused on operating effectively and efficiently with health, safety and environmental (“HSE”) matters and
environmental, social and governance (“ESG”) matters as core values; leveraging our data analytics, emerging technology, operating execution,
strategic sourcing, vertical integration and large-scale asset development expertise to drive cost and capital efficiencies; further enhancing well
performance, optimizing well costs and reducing base production declines; and growing margins and securing flow assurance through commercial
and marketing arrangements.

e Capturing the Tangible Benefits of Scale. We strive to enhance our enterprise returns by leveraging the scale gained from our past strategic
transactions to deliver operating synergies, drive cost savings, expand our economic inventory, lower our enterprise risk profile, and expand our
opportunity set and optionality.

We remain committed to achieving these objectives while maintaining our commitment to being environmentally conscious and proactive and to using
best practices in social stewardship and corporate governance. We believe that we and our industry will continue to face challenges due to evolving
environmental standards and expectations of both regulators and investors, the uncertainty of natural gas, oil and NGL prices in the United States,
changes in laws, regulations and investor sentiment, and other key factors described in Item 1A. Risk Factors in the 2023 Annual Report. As such, we
intend to protect our financial strength by reducing our debt and by maintaining a derivative program designed to reduce our exposure to commodity price
volatility.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion of our results of operations for our segments is presented before intersegment eliminations. We evaluate our segments as if
they were stand-alone operations and accordingly discuss their results prior to any intersegment eliminations. Interest expense, gain (loss) on
derivatives, gain (loss) on early extinguishment of debt and income taxes are discussed on a consolidated basis.

E&P
For the three months ended March
31,

(in millions) 2024 2023
Revenues $ 824 $ 1,429
Operating costs and expenses 2,885 851

Operating income (loss) $ (2,061) $ 578
Gain (loss) on derivatives, settled $ 156 $ (123)

Operating Income (Loss)

» E&P segment operating income decreased $2,639 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to operating income of $578 million
during the same period in 2023. Excluding the impact of the $2,093 million non-cash full cost ceiling test impairments, the decrease was primarily
due to a $605 million decrease in E&P operating revenues resulting from a 37% decrease in our realized weighted average price per Mcfe
(excluding derivatives) and a 9% decrease in production volumes patrtially offset by a $59 million decrease in E&P operating costs and expenses.
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Revenues

The following illustrates the effects on sales revenues associated with changes in commodity prices and production volumes:

Three months ended March 31,

Natural
(in millions except percentages) Gas Oil NGLs Total
2023 sales revenues ¥ $ 1,136 $ 94 $ 201 $ 1,431
Changes associated with prices (475) 1) ?3) (479)
Changes associated with production volumes (90) (12) (24) (126)
2024 sales revenues @ $ 571 $ 81 $ 174 $ 826
Decrease from 2023 (50 %) (14 %) (13 %) (42 %)

(1) Excludes $2 million in other operating revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2023 primarily related to gas balancing losses.

(2) Excludes $2 million in other operating revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2024 primarily related to gas balancing losses.

Production Volumes

For the three months ended March 31,

Production volumes: 2024 2023 Increase/(Decrease)

Natural Gas (Bcf)

Appalachia 187 193 (3)%
Haynesville 138 160 (14)%
Total 325 353 (8)%

Oil (MBbls)

Appalachia 1,226 1,409 (13)%
Haynesville 5 8 (38)%

Other — 1 (100)%
Total 1,231 1,418 (13)%

NGL (MBbls)

Appalachia 7,260 8,240 (12)%
Haynesville 1 — 100%
Total 7,261 8,240 (12)%

Production volumes by area: (Bcfe)

Appalachia 238 251 (5)%
Haynesville 138 160 (14)%
Total 376 411 (9)%

Production volumes by formation: (Bcfe)

Marcellus Shale 213 220 (3)%
Utica Shale 24 31 (23)%
Haynesville Shale 78 98 (20)%
Bossier Shale 61 62 (2)%

Total 376 411 ©)%

Production percentage:

Natural gas 86 % 86 %
Oil 2% 2%
NGL 12% 12 %

e E&P production volumes decreased by 35 Bcfe for the three months ended March 31, 2024, respectively, compared to the same periods in 2023.
The decrease in production volumes is primarily attributable to lower natural gas production as a result of our moderation of activity related to the
decrease in near-term natural gas prices.
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e Oil and NGL production decreased 12% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 as compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to our
moderation of activity related to the decrease in near-term pricing.

Commodity Prices

The price we expect to receive for our production is a critical factor in determining the capital investments we make to develop our
properties. Commodity prices fluctuate due to a variety of factors we can neither control nor predict, including increased supplies of natural gas, oil or
NGLs due to greater development activities, weather conditions, political and economic events, and competition from other energy sources. These factors
impact supply and demand, which in turn determine the sales prices for our production. In addition to these factors, the prices we realize for our
production are affected by our derivative activities as well as locational differences in market prices, including basis differentials. We will continue to
evaluate the commodity price environments and adjust the pace of our activity in order to maintain appropriate liquidity and financial flexibility.

For the three months ended March 31,

2024 2023 Increase/(Decrease)
Natural Gas Price:
NYMEX Henry Hub Price ($/MMBtu) ™ $ 224 3% 3.42 (35)%
Discount to NYMEX @ (0.48) (0.20) 140%
Average realized gas price, excluding derivatives ($/Mcf) $ 1.76 $ 3.22 (45)%
Gain on settled financial basis derivatives($/Mcf) (0.01) (0.08)
Gain (loss) on settled commaodity derivatives($/Mcf) 0.50 (0.24)
Average realized gas price, including derivatives($/Mcf) $ 225 $ 2.90 (22)%
Oil Price:
WTI oil price ($/8bl)® $ 76.96 $ 76.13 1%
Discount to WTI @ (10.89) (10.21) 7%
Average realized oil price, excluding derivatives ($/8bl) $ 66.07 $ 65.92 —%
Loss on settled derivatives($/Bbl) (2.98) (7.75)
Average realized oil price, including derivatives($/Bbl) $ 63.09 $ 58.17 8%
NGL Price:
Average realized NGL price, excluding derivatives ($/Bbl) $ 23.88 $ 24.39 2)%
Gain (loss) on settled derivatives($/Bbl) (0.12) 0.19
Average realized NGL price, including derivatives ($/Bbl) $ 23.76 $ 24.58 3)%
Percentage of WTI, excluding derivatives 31% 32%
Total Weighted Average Realized Price:
Excluding derivatives ($/Mcfe) $ 2.20 $ 3.48 (37)%
Including derivatives ($/Mcfe) $ 2.61 $ 3.18 (18)%

(1) Based on last day settlement prices from monthly futures contracts.

(2) This discount includes a basis differential, a heating content adjustment, physical basis sales, third-party transportation and fuel charges, and excludes financial basis
derivatives.

(3) Based on the average daily settlement price of the nearby month futures contract over the period.

(4) This discount primarily includes location and quality adjustments.

We receive a sales price for our natural gas at a discount to average monthly NYMEX settlement prices based on heating content of the gas,
locational basis differentials and transportation and fuel charges. Additionally, we receive a sales price for our oil and NGLs at a difference to average
monthly West Texas Intermediate (“WTI") settlement and Mont Belvieu NGL composite prices, respectively, due to a number of factors including product
quality, composition and types of NGLs sold, locational basis differentials and transportation and fuel charges.

We regularly enter into various derivatives and other financial arrangements with respect to a portion of our projected natural gas, oil and NGL
production in order to support certain desired levels of cash flow and to minimize the impact of price fluctuations, including fluctuations in locational

market differentials. We refer you to ltem 3, Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk, and Note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, included in this Quarterly Report.
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The tables below present the amount of our future natural gas production in which the impact of basis volatility has been limited through derivatives
and physical sales arrangements as of March 31, 2024:

Volume (Bcf) Basis Differential
Basis Swaps - Natural Gas
2024 9 $ (0.71)
2025 9 (0.64)
Total 103
Physical NYMEX Sales Arrangements - Natural Gas (V)
2024 670 $ 0.24
2025 600 0.13
2026 419 0.07
2027 340 0.03
2028 303 0.02
2029 252 0.01
2030 105 0.01
Total 2,689

(1) Based on last day settlement prices from monthly futures contracts.

In addition to protecting basis, the table below presents the amount of our future production in which price is financially protected as of March 31,
2024:

Remaining Full Year
2024 2025
Natural gas (Bcf) 502 267
Oil (MBbls) 1,939 1,319
Ethane (MBbls) 5,335 2,190
Propane (MBbls) 4,483 1,341
Normal butane (MBbls) 1,073 548
Natural gasoline (MBbls) 1,210 730
Total financial protection on future production (Bcfe) 586 304

We refer you to Note 6 of the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional details about our derivative
instruments.

Operating Costs and Expenses

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions except percentages) 2024 2023 Increase/(Decrease)
Lease operating expenses $ 423 $ 430 2)%
General & administrative expenses 50 42 19%
Merger-related expenses 9 — 100%
Taxes, other than income taxes 49 67 27N%
Full cost pool amortization 257 308 an%
Non-full cost pool DD&A 4 4 —%
Full cost pool write-down 2,093 — 100%

Total operating costs $ 2,885 $ 851 239%
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For the three months ended March 31, Increase/
Average unit costs per Mcfe: 2024 2023 (Decrease)
Lease operating expenses () $ 1.12 $ 1.05 7%
General & administrative expenses $ 013 @ $ 0.10 30%
Taxes, other than income taxes $ 0.13 $ 0.16 (19)%
Full cost pool amortization $ 0.68 $ 0.75 (9)%

(€]
()

Includes post-production costs such as gathering, processing, fractionation and compression.

Excludes $9 million of merger-related expenses for the three months ended March 31, 2024.

Lease Operating Expenses

Lease operating expenses decreased $8 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the same period in 2023, primarily
attributable to lower production volumes more than offsetting the impact of inflation and incremental costs from additional infrastructure becoming
operational. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, these factors combined to increase lease operating expenses $0.07 per Mcfe compared to
the same period in 2023.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased $8 million or $0.03 per Mcfe for the three months ended March 31, 2024 compared to the same
period in 2023, primarily due to personnel related costs and costs associated with the development of our enterprise resource technology.

Merger-Related Expenses

For the three months ended March 31, 2024, Chesapeake merger-related expenses were approximately $9 million and mostly comprised of
professional fees associated with the Proposed Merger.

Taxes, Other than Income Taxes

On a per Mcfe basis, taxes, other than income taxes may vary from period to period due to changes in ad valorem and severance taxes that result
from the mix of our production volumes, fluctuations in commodity prices and changes in the tax rates enacted by the respective states we operate
in.

Taxes, other than income taxes, per Mcfe decreased $0.03 for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023,
primarily due to the impact of lower commodity pricing on our severance taxes in West Virginia, which are calculated as a fixed percentage of
revenue net of allowable production expenses.

Full Cost Pool Amortization

Our full cost pool amortization rate decreased $0.07 per Mcfe for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the same period in 2023,
primarily due to the non-cash full cost ceiling test impairment taken during the fourth quarter of 2023.

The amortization rate is impacted by the timing and amount of reserve additions and the future development costs associated with those additions,
revisions of previous reserve estimates due to both price and well performance, write-downs that result from non-cash full cost ceiling impairments,
proceeds from the sale of properties that reduce the full cost pool and the levels of costs subject to amortization. We cannot predict our future full cost
pool amortization rate with accuracy due to the variability of each of the factors discussed above, as well as other factors, including but not limited to
the uncertainty of the amount of future reserve changes.

Unevaluated costs excluded from amortization were $2,037 million and $2,075 million at March 31, 2024 and December 31, 2023, respectively. The
unevaluated costs excluded from amortization decreased as the impact of $110 million of unevaluated capital invested during the period was more
than offset by the evaluation of previously unevaluated properties totaling $148 million.

Impairments

We recognized $2,093 million in non-cash full cost ceiling test impairments for the three months ended March 31, 2024 primarily due to decreased
commodity pricing over the prior 12 months.
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Marketing
For the three months ended March 31, Increase/

(in millions except volumes and percentages) 2024 2023 (Decrease)
Marketing revenues $ 1,377 $ 2,041 (33)%
Marketing purchases 1,366 2,007 (32)%
Operating costs and expenses 7 6 17%

Operating income $ 4 $ 28 (86)%
Volumes marketed (Bcfe) 558 551 1%
Percent natural gas production marketed from affiliated E&P operations 83 % 93 %
Affiliated E&P oil and NGL production marketed 91 % 90 %

Operating Income

*  Operating income for our Marketing segment decreased $24 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period in
2023, primarily due to a $23 million decrease in the marketing margin (discussed below).

* The margin generated from marketing activities was $11 million and $34 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and 2023, respectively.
The marketing margin decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to market
conditions limiting opportunities to capture incremental value from the purchase and sale of third-party natural gas.

Marketing margins are driven primarily by volumes marketed and may fluctuate depending on the prices paid for commodities, related cost of
transportation and the ultimate disposition of those commodities. Increases and decreases in revenues due to changes in commodity prices and volumes
marketed are largely offset by corresponding changes in purchase expenses. Efforts to optimize the cost of our transportation can result in greater
expenses and therefore lower marketing margins.

Revenues

* Revenues from our marketing activities decreased $664 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the same period in 2023.
The decrease was primarily due to a 33% decrease in the price received for volumes marketed and partially offset by a 7 Bcfe increase in the
volumes marketed for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023.

Operating Costs and Expenses

»  Operating costs and expenses for the marketing segment increased $1 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the same
period in 2023, as a result of higher personnel-related costs.

Consolidated

Interest Expense
For the three months ended March
31,
(in millions except percentages) 2024 2023 Increase/(Decrease)
Gross interest expense:
Senior notes $ 51 $ 56 (9)%
Credit arrangements 8 7 14%
Amortization of debt costs 3 3 —%
Total gross interest expense 62 66 (6)%
Less: capitalization (27) (30) (10)%
Net interest expense $ 3B % 36 3)%

* Interest expense decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023, primarily due to the full redemption of
our 7.75% Senior Notes due 2027 during the first quarter of 2023.
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* Capitalized interest decreased for the three months ended March 31, 2024, as compared to the same periods in 2023 due to the evaluation of natural
gas and oil properties over the past twelve months.

* Capitalized interest as a percentage of gross interest expense decreased slightly for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same
period in 2023, primarily due to a larger percentage decrease in our unevaluated natural gas and oil properties balance as a result of continued
evaluation as compared to the smaller percentage decrease in our gross interest expense over the same periods.

¢ We refer you to Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional details about our debt and our
financing activities.

Gain (Loss) on Derivatives

For the three months ended March

31,
(in millions) 2024 2023
Gain (loss) on unsettled derivatives $ (31) $ 1,528
Gain (loss) on settled derivatives 156 (123)
Non-performance risk adjustment 1 4)
Gain (loss) on derivatives $ 126 $ 1,401

We refer you to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional details about our gain (loss) on
derivatives.

Gain/Loss on Early Extinguishment of Debt

During the three months ended March 31, 2023, we redeemed all of the outstanding 7.75% Senior Notes due 2027 at a redemption price equal to
103.875% of the principal amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest of $13 million for a total payment of $450 million. We recognized a $19 million
loss on the extinguishment of debt, which included the write off of $3 million in related unamortized debt discounts and debt issuance costs.

See Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of this Quarterly Report for more information on our long-term debt.

Income Taxes

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions except percentages) 2024 2023
Income tax (benefit) expense $ (430) 3 12
Effective tax rate 22% 1%

Our effective tax rate was approximately 22% and 1% for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively. The effective
tax rate for the three months ended March 31, 2023 was primarily the result of the partial release of the valuation allowances against our U.S. deferred
tax assets in the first quarter of 2023. A valuation allowance for deferred tax assets, including NOLs, is recognized when it is more likely than not that
some or all of the benefit from the deferred tax assets will not be realized. To assess that likelihood, we used estimates and judgment regarding future
taxable income and considered the tax consequences in the jurisdiction where such taxable income is generated, to determine whether a valuation
allowance is required. Such evidence can include current financial position, results of operations, both actual and forecasted, the reversal of deferred tax
liabilities and tax planning strategies as well as the current and forecasted business economics of the oil and gas industry.

For the year ended December 31, 2022, we maintained a full valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets based on our conclusion,
considering all available evidence (both positive and negative), that it was more likely than not that the deferred tax assets would not be realized. A
significant item of objective negative evidence considered was the cumulative pre-tax loss incurred over the three-year period ended December 31,
2022, primarily due to impairments of proved oil and gas properties recognized in 2020. As of the first quarter of 2023, we sustained a three-year
cumulative level of profitability. Based on this factor and other positive evidence such as forecasted income, we concluded that $512 million of our federal
and state deferred tax assets were more likely than not to be realized and released this portion of the valuation allowance throughout 2023. Accordingly,
during the three months ended March 31, 2023, we recognized $451 million of deferred income tax expense related to recording its tax provision which
was partially offset by $439 million of tax benefit attributable to the release of the valuation allowance. The remaining valuation allowance was released
during subsequent quarters during 2023. We expect to keep a valuation allowance of $52 million related to NOLs in jurisdictions in which we no longer
operate and against the portion of our federal and state deferred tax assets such as capital losses and interest carryovers, which may expire before being
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fully utilized due to the application of the limitations under Section 382 and the ordering in which such attributes may be applied.

Due to the issuance of common stock associated with the Indigo merger in September 2021, we incurred a cumulative ownership change and as
such, our NOLs prior to the acquisition are subject to an annual limitation under Internal Revenue Code Section 382 of approximately $48 million. The
ownership changes and resulting annual limitation will result in the expiration of NOLs or other tax attributes otherwise available. At March 31, 2024, we
had approximately $4 billion of federal NOL carryovers, of which approximately $3 billion have an expiration date between 2035 and 2037 and $1 billion
have an indefinite carryforward life. We currently estimate that approximately $2 billion of these federal NOLs will expire before they are able to be used
and accordingly, no value has been ascribed to these NOLs on our balance sheet. If a subsequent ownership change were to occur as a result of future
transactions in our common stock, our use of remaining U.S. tax attributes may be further limited.

The Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (the “IRA”") was enacted on August 16, 2022 and may impact how the U.S. taxes certain large corporations. In
addition to other provisions, the IRA imposes a 15% corporate alternative minimum tax (“CAMT") on the “adjusted financial statement income” of certain
large corporations (generally, corporations reporting at least $1 billion average adjusted pre-tax net income on their consolidated financial statements) for
tax years beginning after December 31, 2022. This alternative minimum tax requires complex computations to be performed that were not previously
required in U.S. tax law, significant judgments to be made in interpretation of the provisions of the IRA, significant estimates in calculations, and the
preparation and analysis of information not previously relevant or regularly produced. The U.S. Treasury Department, the Internal Revenue Service, and
other standard-setting bodies are expected to issue guidance on how the alternative minimum tax provisions of the IRA will be applied or otherwise
administered that may differ from our interpretations. As we complete our analysis of the IRA, collect and prepare necessary data, and interpret any
additional guidance, we may make adjustments to provisional amounts that we have recorded that may materially impact our provision for income taxes
in the period in which adjustments are made. The CAMT did not have any impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements during 2023 and
we do not expect to be impacted by the alternative minimum tax during 2024. We will continue to monitor updates to the IRA and the impact it will have
on our consolidated financial statements.

New Accounting Standards Implemented in this Report

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements of this Quarterly Report for a discussion of new accounting standards that have been
implemented.

New Accounting Standards Not Yet Implemented in this Report

Refer to Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements of this Quarterly Report for a discussion of new accounting standards that have not yet
been implemented.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

We depend primarily on funds generated from our operations, our 2022 credit facility, our cash and cash equivalents balance and our access to
capital markets as our primary sources of liquidity. On April 8, 2022, we amended and restated our 2018 credit facility and extended the maturity through
April 2027 (the “2022 credit facility”). In connection with entering into our 2022 credit facility, the banks participating in our 2022 credit facility increased
our borrowing base to $3.5 billion and agreed to provide five-year revolving commitments of $2.0 billion (the “Five-Year Tranche”) and agreed to updated
terms that provide the ability to convert our secured credit facility to an unsecured credit facility if we are able to achieve investment grade status, as
deemed by the relevant credit rating agencies.

On March 29, 2024, our borrowing base was reaffirmed at $3.5 billion and our Five-Year Tranche was reaffirmed at $2.0 billion. At March 31, 2024,
we had approximately $1.76 billion of total available liquidity, which exceeds our currently modeled needs as we remain committed to our strategy of
capital discipline.

Effective August 4, 2022, the Company elected to temporarily increase commitments under the 2022 credit facility by $500 million (the “Short-Term
Tranche”) as a temporary working capital liquidity resource. The Company had no borrowings under the Short-Term Tranche which expired on April 30,
2023 and was not renewed.

We refer you to Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report and the section below under “Credit Arrangements
and Financing Activities” for additional discussion of our 2022 credit facility and related covenant requirements.

Looking forward, we intend to prioritize the use of any free cash flow to pay down our debt in order to progress toward our debt targets of $3.5 billion
to $3.0 billion or lower and our leverage targets of 1.5x to 1.0x.
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Our cash flow from operating activities is highly dependent upon our ability to sell and the sales prices that we receive for our natural gas and liquids
production. Natural gas, oil and NGL prices are subject to wide fluctuations and are driven by market supply and demand, which is impacted by many
factors. See “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of our 2023 Annual Report for additional discussion about current and potential future market conditions. The sales
price we receive for our production is also influenced by our commodity derivative program. Our derivative contracts allow us to support a certain level of
cash flow to fund our operations. Although we are continually assessing adding derivative positions for portions of our expected 2024, 2025 and 2026
production, there can be no assurance that we will be able to add derivative positions to cover the remainder of our expected production at favorable
prices. We refer you to “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of our 2023 Annual Report.

Our commodity hedging activities are subject to the credit risk of our counterparties being financially unable to settle the transaction. We actively
monitor the credit status of our counterparties, performing both quantitative and qualitative assessments based on their credit ratings and credit default
swap rates where applicable, and to date have not had any credit defaults associated with our transactions. However, any future failures by one or more
counterparties could negatively impact our cash flow from operating activities. Additionally, we do not expect the events of early 2023 within the banking
industry to have a material impact on our expected results of operations, financial performance, or liquidity. However, if there are issues in the wider
financial system and if other financial institutions fail, our business, liquidity and financial condition could be materially affected, including as a result of
impacts of any such issues or failures on our counterparties.

Our short-term cash flows are also dependent on the timely collection of receivables from our customers, hedging counterparties and joint interest
owners. We actively manage this risk through credit management activities and, through the date of this filing, have not experienced any significant write-
offs for non-collectable amounts. However, any sustained inaccessibility of credit by our customers, hedging counterparties and joint interest owners
could adversely impact our cash flows.

Due to these factors, we are unable to forecast with certainty our future level of cash flow from operations. Accordingly, we expect to adjust our
discretionary uses of cash depending upon available cash flow. Further, we may from time to time seek to retire, rearrange or amend some or all of our
outstanding debt or debt agreements through cash purchases, and/or exchanges, open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions, tender offers
or otherwise. Such transactions, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, our liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other
factors. The amounts involved may be material.

Credit Arrangements and Financing Activities

In April 2022, we entered into an amended and restated credit agreement that replaced the 2018 credit facility (the “2022 credit facility”) with a group
of banks that, as amended, has a maturity date of April 2027. As of March 31, 2024, the 2022 credit facility had an aggregate maximum revolving credit
amount and borrowing base of $3.5 billion and elected commitments of $2.0 billion.

The borrowing base is subject to redetermination at least twice a year, which typically occurs in April and October, and is subject to change based
primarily on drilling results, commodity prices, our future derivative position, the level of capital investment and operating costs. The 2022 credit facility is
secured by substantially all of our assets and our subsidiaries’ assets (taken as a whole). The permitted lien provisions in the senior note indentures
currently limit liens securing indebtedness to the greater of $2.0 billion or 25% of adjusted consolidated net tangible assets. The 2022 credit facility
contains the ability to utilize SOFR index rates for purposes of calculating interest expense.

The 2022 credit facility has certain financial covenant requirements but provides certain fall away features should we receive an Investment Grade
Rating (defined as an index debt rating of BBB- or higher with S&P, Baa3 or higher with Moody’s, or BBB- or higher with Fitch) and meet other criteria in
the future. We refer you to Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion of our 2022 credit
facility.

As of March 31, 2024, we were in compliance with all of the applicable covenants contained in the credit agreement governing our 2022 credit facility.
Our ability to comply with financial covenants in future periods depends, among other things, on the success of our development program and upon other
factors beyond our control, such as the market demand and prices for natural gas, oil and NGLs. We refer you to Note 9 of the consolidated financial
statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion of the covenant requirements of our 2022 credit facility.

As of March 31, 2024, we had $270 million of borrowings on our 2022 credit facility and no outstanding letters of credit. We currently do not anticipate
being required to supply a materially greater amount of letters of credit under our existing contracts. We refer you to Note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion of our 2022 credit facility.
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The credit status of the financial institutions participating in our 2022 credit facility could adversely impact our ability to borrow funds under the 2022
credit facility. Although we believe all of the lenders under the facility have the ability to provide funds, we cannot predict whether each will be able to
meet their obligation to us. We refer you to Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion of
our revolving credit facility.

Other key financing activities for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are as follows:

Debt Repurchases

e On February 26, 2023, we redeemed all of the outstanding 7.750% Senior Notes due 2027 at a redemption price equal to 103.875% of the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest of $13 million for a total payment of $450 million. We recognized a $19 million loss on the
extinguishment of debt, which included the write off of $3 million in related unamortized debt discounts and debt issuance costs. We funded the
redemption using approximately $316 million of cash on hand and approximately $134 million of borrowings under our 2022 credit facility.

As of April 30, 2024, we had long-term debt issuer ratings of Bal by Moody’s (rating affirmed Bal and outlook upgraded to positive on January 11,
2024 in conjunction with the Proposed Merger announcement), BB+ by S&P (rating affirmed BB+ and outlook upgraded to positive on January 18, 2023)
and BB+ by Fitch Ratings (rating and positive outlook affirmed on August 16, 2023). Both S&P and Fitch also placed us on Credit / Rating Watch Positive
on January 11, 2024 following the Proposed Merger announcement. Effective in January 2022, the interest rate for our 4.95% senior notes due January
2025 (“2025 Notes”) was 5.95%, reflecting a net downgrade in our bond ratings since their issuance. On May 31, 2022, Moody's upgraded our bond
rating to Bal, which decreased the interest rate on the 2025 Notes from 5.95% to 5.70% for coupon payments paid after July 2022. Any further upgrades
or downgrades in our public debt ratings by Moody’s or S&P could decrease or increase our cost of funds, respectively, as our 2025 Notes are subject to
ratings driven changes.

Cash Flows

For the three months ended March 31,
(in millions) 2024 2023
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 496 $ 1,137
Net cash used in investing activities (521) (670)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 33 (514)

Cash Flow from Operations

For the three months ended March 31,

(in millions) 2024 2023

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 496 $ 1,137
Add back (subtract) changes in working capital (66) (373)
Net cash provided by operating activities, net of changes in working capital $ 430 $ 764

» Net cash provided by operating activities decreased 56%, or $641 million, for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period
in 2023, primarily due to a $479 million decrease resulting from lower commodity prices, a $126 million decrease related to decreased production, a
$307 million decrease in working capital, and a $23 million decrease in our marketing margin which was partially offset by a $279 million
improvement in our settled derivative positions, and a $8 million decrease in operating costs and expenses.

* Net cash provided by operating activities, net of changes in working capital, provided 80% of our cash requirements for capital investments for the
three months ended March 31, 2024 and exceeded our cash requirements for capital investments for the three months ended March 31, 2023. While
we front-loaded our capital program into the earlier quarters of the year, we remain committed to our capital discipline strategy of investing within our
cash flow from operations, net of changes in working capital.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

» Total E&P capital investments decreased $127 million for the three months ended March 31, 2024, compared to the same period in 2023, primarily
attributable our moderation of activity related to the decrease in near-term natural gas prices.
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(in millions)

Additions to properties and equipment

Adjustments for capital investments
Changes in capital accruals

Other @

Total capital investing

For the three months ended March 31,

2024 2023
521 $ 670

14 6)

3 1

538 $ 665

(1) Includes capitalized non-cash stock-based compensation and costs to retire assets, which are classified as cash used in operating activities.

Capital Investing

(in millions except percentages)
E&P capital investing

Other capital investing®

Total capital investing

For the three months ended March

2023 Increase/(Decrease)
664 (19)%
1 —%
665 (19)%

(1) Other capital investing relates to information technology purchases for the three months ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023, respectively.

(in millions)

E&P Capital Investments by Type:
Development and exploration, including workovers
Acquisition of properties
Other

Capitalized interest and expenses

Total E&P capital investments

E&P Capital Investments by Area:
Appalachia
Haynesville

Other E&P

Total E&P capital investments

For the three months ended March

31,

2024 2023
$ 430 $ 584
45 24
7 5)
55 51
$ 537 $ 664
$ 279 $ 276
253 381
5 7
$ 537 $ 664

For the three months ended March 31,

2024 2023
Gross Operated Well Count Summary:
Drilled 29 31
Completed 27 36
Wells to sales 18 36

Actual capital expenditure levels may vary significantly from period to period due to many factors, including drilling results, natural gas, oil and NGL
prices, industry conditions, the prices and availability of goods and services, and the extent to which properties are acquired or non-strategic assets are

sold.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

¢ On February 26, 2023, we redeemed all of the outstanding 7.750% Senior Notes due 2027 at a redemption price equal to 103.875% of the principal
amount thereof plus accrued and unpaid interest of $13 million for a total payment of $450 million. We recognized a $19 million loss on the
extinguishment of debt, which included the write off of $3 million in related unamortized debt discounts and debt issuance costs. We funded the
redemption using approximately $316 million of cash on hand and approximately $134 million of borrowings under our 2022 credit facility.

We refer you to Note 9 of the consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional discussion of our outstanding debt and

credit facilities.
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Working Capital

We had negative working capital of $773 million at March 31, 2024, a $459 million decrease from December 31, 2023, primarily attributable to the
reclassification of $389 million of our 4.95% Senior Notes due 2025 from long term to short term, a decrease in accounts receivable of $189 million, an
$11 million decrease in the current mark-to-market value of our derivatives position related to the changes in commodity pricing, an increase in other
current liabilities of $11 million and a decrease in other current assets of $9 million. The decrease was partially offset by a decrease in our accounts
payable of $85 million, a decrease in interest payable of $51 million, an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $8 million and a decrease in taxes
payable of $5 million as compared to December 31, 2023. We believe that our existing cash and cash equivalents, our anticipated cash flows from
operations and our available 2022 credit facility will be sufficient to meet our working capital and operational spending requirements.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We may enter into off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions that can give rise to material off-balance sheet obligations. As of March 31,
2024, our material off-balance sheet arrangements and transactions include operating service arrangements. There are no other transactions,
arrangements or other relationships with unconsolidated entities or other persons that are reasonably likely to materially affect our liquidity or availability of
our capital resources. For more information regarding off-balance sheet arrangements, we refer you to Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
Other than the firm transportation and gathering agreements discussed in Note 10, there have been no material changes to our contractual obligations
from those disclosed in our 2023 Annual Report.

Supplemental Guarantor Financial Information

As discussed in Note 9, in April 2022 the Company entered into the 2022 credit facility. Pursuant to requirements under the indentures governing our
senior notes, each 100% owned subsidiary that becomes a guarantor of the 2022 credit facility is also required to become a guarantor of each of our
senior notes (the “Guarantor Subsidiaries”). The Guarantor Subsidiaries also granted liens and security interests to support their guarantees under the
2022 credit facility, but not of the senior notes. These guarantees are full and unconditional and joint and several among the Guarantor Subsidiaries.
Certain of our operating units are accounted for on a consolidated basis do not guarantee the 2022 credit facility and senior notes.

The Company and the Guarantor Subsidiaries jointly and severally, and fully and unconditionally, guarantee the payment of the principal and
premium, if any, and interest on the senior notes when due, whether at stated maturity of the senior notes, by acceleration, by call for redemption or
otherwise, together with interest on the overdue principal, if any, and interest on any overdue interest, to the extent lawful, and all other obligations of the
Company to the holders of the senior notes.

SEC Regulation S-X Rule 13-01 requires the presentation of “Summarized Financial Information” to replace the “Condensed Consolidating Financial
Information” required under Rule 3-10. Rule 13-01 allows the omission of Summarized Financial Information if assets, liabilities and results of operations
of the Guarantor Subsidiaries are not materially different than the corresponding amounts presented in the consolidated financial statements of the
Company. The Parent and Guarantor Subsidiaries comprise the material operations of the Company. Therefore, the Company concluded that the
presentation of the Summarized Financial Information is not required as the Summarized Financial Information of the Company’s Guarantors is not
materially different from our consolidated financial statements.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates as compared to the critical accounting policies and estimates
described in our 2023 Annual Report.
ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from the volatility in commaodity prices, basis differentials and interest rates, as well as service
costs and credit risk concentrations. We use fixed price swaps, two-way costless collars, three-way costless collars, options (calls and puts), basis
swaps, index swaps and interest rate swaps to reduce the volatility of earnings and cash flow due to fluctuations in the prices of natural gas, oil and
certain NGLs along with interest rates. Our Board has approved risk management policies and procedures to utilize financial products for the reduction of
defined commodity price risk. Utilization of financial products for the reduction of interest rate risks is also overseen by our Board. These policies prohibit
speculation with derivatives and limit swap agreements to counterparties with appropriate credit standings.

Credit Risk

Our exposure to concentrations of credit risk consists primarily of trade receivables and derivative contracts associated with commodities
trading. Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables are limited due to the large number of our
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purchasers and their dispersion across geographic areas. For the three months ended March 31, 2024, one purchaser accounted for 12% of our
revenues. For the year ended December 31, 2023, one purchaser accounted for 14% of our revenues. No other individual purchasers accounted for
more than 10% of our revenues in either of these respective periods. A default on this account could have a material impact on the Company. See
“Commaodities Risk” below for discussion of credit risk associated with commaodities trading.

Interest Rate Risk

As of March 31, 2024, we had approximately $3,743 million of outstanding senior notes with a weighted average interest rate of 5.46%, and
$270 million of borrowings under our 2022 credit facility. As of March 31, 2024, we had long-term debt issuer ratings of BB+ by S&P, Bal by Moody’s and
BB+ by Fitch Ratings. On September 1, 2021 S&P upgraded our bond rating to BB, and on January 6, 2022, S&P further upgraded our bond rating to
BB+, which decreased the interest rate on the 2025 notes to 5.95%, beginning with coupon payments paid after January 2022. On May 31, 2022,
Moody’s upgraded the Company’s bond rating to Bal, which decreased the interest rate on the 2025 Notes from 5.95% to 5.70% with coupon payments
paid after July 2022. Any further upgrades or downgrades in our public debt ratings by Moody’s or S&P could decrease or increase our cost of funds,
respectively, as our 2025 Notes are subject to ratings driven changes.

Expected Maturity Date

($ in millions except percentages) 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 Thereafter Total
Fixed rate payments @ $ — 3 389 $ — 3 — $ 304 % 3,050 $ 3,743
Weighted average interest rate — % 5.70 % — % — % 8.38 % 5.14 % 5.46 %
Variable rate payments @ $ — 3 — 3 — 3 270 $ — 3 — $ 270
Weighted average interest rate —% — % —% 7.16 % — % —% 7.16 %

(1) Excludes unamortized debt issuance costs and debt discounts.
Commodities Risk

We use fixed price swap agreements and options to protect sales of our production against the inherent risks of adverse price fluctuations or
locational pricing differences between a published index and the NYMEX futures market. These swaps and options include transactions in which one
party will pay a fixed price (or variable price) for a notional quantity in exchange for receiving a variable price (or fixed price) based on a published index
(referred to as price swaps) and transactions in which parties agree to pay a price based on two different indices (referred to as basis swaps).

The primary market risks relating to our derivative contracts are the volatility in market prices and basis differentials for our production. However, the
market price risk is offset by the gain or loss recognized upon the related sale or purchase of the production that is financially protected. Credit risk
relates to the risk of loss as a result of non-performance by our counterparties. The counterparties are primarily major banks and integrated energy
companies that management believes present minimal credit risks. The credit quality of each counterparty and the level of financial exposure we have to
each counterparty are closely monitored to limit our credit risk exposure. Additionally, we perform both quantitative and qualitative assessments of these
counterparties based on their credit ratings and credit default swap rates where applicable. We have not incurred any counterparty losses related to non-
performance and do not anticipate any losses given the information we have currently. However, we cannot be certain that we will not experience such
losses in the future. The fair value of our derivative assets and liabilities includes a non-performance risk factor. We refer you to Note 6 and Note 8 of the
consolidated financial statements included in this Quarterly Report for additional details about our derivative instruments and their fair value.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We have performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange
Act as of the end of the period covered by this Quarterly Report. Our disclosure controls and procedures are the controls and other procedures that we
have designed to ensure that we record, process, accumulate and communicate information to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures and submission within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules
and forms. All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even those determined to be effective can
provide only a level of reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation and presentation. Based on the evaluation, our management,
including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31,
2024 at a reasonable assurance level.
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Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that
occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2024 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.

PART Il - OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Refer to “Litigation” and “Environmental Risk” in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements included in Item 1 of Part | of this Quarterly Report
for a discussion of the Company’s legal proceedings.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
There were no additions or material changes to our risk factors as disclosed in Item 1A of Part | in the Company’s 2023 Annual Report.
ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
Not applicable.
ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
Not applicable.
ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION
Securities Trading Plans of Directors and Executive Officers

During the three months ended March 31, 2024, no director or officer of the Company adopted or terminated a “Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement” or
“non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement,” as each term is defined in Item 408(a) of Regulation S-K promulgated by the SEC.
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

(2.1)

(2.2)

(3.1)

(3.2)

(33

(34)

(10.1)*

(10.2)*
(31.1)*
(31.2)*
(32.1)*
(32.2)
(101.INS)
(101.SCH)
(101.CAL)
(101.LAB)
(101.PRE)
(101.DEF)
(104.1)

* Filed herewith

** Furnished herewith

Signatures

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated June 1, 2021, by and among Southwestern Energy Company, lkon Acquisition Company, LLC, Indigo

Natural Resources LLC, and lbis Unitholder Representative, LLC solely in its capacity as the Unitholder Representative (Incorporated b
reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 2, 2021).

Agreement and Plan of Merger dated January 10, 2024, by and among Southwestern Energy Company, Chesapeake Energy Corporation
Hulk Merger Sub, Inc. and Hulk LLC Sub, LLC (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Reqistrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on January 11, 2024).

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Southwestern Energy Company (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 24, 2010).

Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated September 1, 2021 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 1, 2021).

Certificate of Amendment No. 2 of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated May 18, 2023 (Incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 22, 2023).

Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Southwestern Energy Company, as amended through November 1, 2023 (Incorporated by
reference to the Exhibit 3.4 to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2023).

Southwestern Energy Company 2022 Incentive Plan Form ofRestricted Stock Unit Award Agreement, for awards granted on or after February
21, 2024.

Southwestern Energy Company Restricted Cash Unit Award Agreement, for awards granted on or after February 21, 2024

Certification of CEO filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of CFO filed pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification of CEO furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
Certification of CFO furnished pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Inline Interactive Data File Instance Document

Inline Interactive Data File Schema Document

Inline Interactive Data File Calculation Linkbase Document
Inline Interactive Data File Label Linkbase Document

Inline Interactive Data File Presentation Linkbase Document
Inline Interactive Data File Definition Linkbase Document

Cover Page Interactive Data File — the cover page from this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, formatted in inline XBRL (included within the
Exhibit 101 attachments)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Dated:

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY

Registrant

May 2, 2024 /sl CARL F. GIESLER, JR.

Carl F. Giesler, Jr.
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer
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SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY 2022 INCENTIVE PLAN
RESTRICTED STOCK UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (“Southwestern”), has on this [ ] day of

__(the “Award Date”) granted to | (the “Participant”) a Restricted Stock Unit Award (“the “Award”). This Award |s
subject to the terms of this Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”) and is made pursuant to the
Southwestern Energy Company 2022 Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Southwestern Energy Company Guidelines for
Long-Term Incentive Awards (the “Guidelines”) thereunder, both of which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.
Any capitalized terms used herein that are otherwise undefined shall have the meaning provided in the Plan or the
Guidelines.

1. Acceptance of Terms and Conditions. By acknowledging and accepting this Award, Participant agrees to be bound
by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Plan (including without limitation, Section 12 of the Plan), and all
conditions established by Southwestern in connection with Awards issued under the Plan, and Participant further
acknowledges and agrees that this Award does not confer any legal or equitable right (other than those rights constituting
the Award itself) against Southwestern or any Subsidiary (collectively, the “Company”) directly or indirectly, or give rise to
any cause of action at law or in equity against the Company. To vest in the Restricted Stock Units (“RSUs") described in this
Agreement, Participant must accept this Award. If Participant fails to accept this Award prior to the first Vesting Date, the
Award will be cancelled and forfeited.

2. Grant. Subject to the restrictions, limitations, terms and conditions specified in the Plan and this Agreement, effective as
of the Award Date, Southwestern hereby grants the Participant ] RSUs.

3 . Vesting. Except as otherwise provided in Sections 5 and 7 of this Agreement, the RSUs will vest in three equal
amounts on each of the first, second, and third anniversaries of the Award Date (each a “Vesting Date”), provided
Participant is employed by the Company on the applicable Vesting Date.

4. Settlement. Within 30 business days following the vesting of any RSUs granted pursuant to this Agreement, subject to
Section 9 hereof, Southwestern shall for each vested RSU deliver to the Participant, at the election of the Committee in its
sole discretion, either (a) one share of Common Stock or (b) an amount in cash equal to the Fair Market Value of one share
of Common Stock as of the Vesting Date, and for the avoidance of doubt, may settle the Award using a combination of
shares of Common Stock and cash in accordance with the foregoing.

5. Termination of Employment.
(a) Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement. If the Participant's employment with the Company is
terminated as a result of the Participant’s death, Disability, or Retirement, all unvested RSUs on the date of such termination

shall become fully vested and will be settled in cash equal to the Fair Market Value of one share of Common Stock in
accordance with Section 4 above.

RSU Agreement -1-



(b) Other Terminations. If the Participant's employment with the Company is terminated for any reason other than
those specified in Section 5(a) above, all unvested RSUs on the date of the Participant’s termination of employment shall be
forfeited on the date of such termination of employment, without any payment of consideration by the Company to the
Participant.

6. Subsidiaries. Unless the Committee determines otherwise, any unvested RSUs held by a Participant employed by an
entity that is a Subsidiary will terminate and be forfeited immediately on the date such entity ceases to be a Subsidiary of
Southwestern.

7. Change in Control. Upon a Change in Control, (x) to the extent no provision is made in connection with the Change in
Control for assumption of the Award as set forth in Section 10(a) of the Plan, or (y) the Award is assumed or substituted in
connection with the Change in Control and the Participant’'s employment is terminated as set forth in Section 10(b) of the
Plan, all unvested RSUs shall fully vest and will be settled in accordance with Section 4 above.

8 . Limitations on Transfer. Prior to vesting of the RSUs granted pursuant to this Award, the RSUs may not be
transferred by the Participant under any circumstances and any transfer of the Participant’s rights with respect to these
RSUs, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or otherwise, will result in the cancellation and forfeiture of this
Award and the transfer shall be of no force or effect.

9. Responsibility for Taxes. The Participant shall be solely responsible for any applicable taxes (including, without
limitation, income and excise taxes) and penalties, and any interest that accrues thereon, which he or she incurs in
connection with the vesting, or settlement of this Award, in accordance with Section 16 of the Plan. However, upon the
exercise or settlement of this Award in cash, or any payment with respect to this Award, the Company shall have the right to
withhold from any payment required to be made pursuant thereto an amount sufficient to satisfy the federal, state, local
and/or non-U.S. withholding tax requirements, if any, attributable to such exercise, settlement or payment.

10. Section 409A of the Code. The benefits provided hereunder shall be paid in such a manner as to satisfy Section
409A of the Code or an exception to the application of Section 409A of the Code. To the extent that these benefits become
subject to Section 409A of the Code, this Agreement and the Plan shall be interpreted and construed to the fullest extent
allowed under Section 409A of the Code and the applicable guidance thereunder to satisfy the requirements of an exception
or to comply with Section 409A of the Code and the applicable guidance thereunder and to avoid any additional tax
thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of this Agreement or the Plan to the contrary, in no event shall
the Company be liable to a Participant on account of an Award’s failure to (i) qualify for favorable U.S. or non-U.S. tax
treatment or (ii) avoid adverse tax treatment under U.S. or non-U.S. law, including, without limitation, Section 409A of the
Code. In addition, notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if a Participant is a Specified Employee at the
time of his or her Separation from Service, any payment(s) with respect to any Award subject to Section 409A of the Code
to which such Participant would otherwise be entitled by reason of such Separation from Service shall be made on the date
that is six months after the Participant’s Separation from Service (or, if earlier, the date of the Participant’s death).



11. Conformity with the Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of the Plan. If there is any conflict between the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement the terms of
the Plan, as interpreted by the Committee, shall govern.

12. No Rights to Continued Employment. Nothing in this Agreement or in the Plan shall confer upon the Participant any
right with respect to the continuation of the Participant’'s employment by or service to the Company or interfere in any way
with the right of the Company at any time to terminate the Participant’'s employment or service or to increase or decrease
the compensation of the Participant from the rate in existence at the time of the grant of this Award.

13. Consent to Transfer Personal Data. The Participant acknowledges and consents to the collection, use, processing
and transfer of personal data as described in this Section 13. The Company holds certain personal information about the
Participant for the purpose of managing and administering the Plan (the “Data”). The Company may transfer Data to any
third parties assisting the Company in the implementation, administration and management of the Plan. The Participant
authorizes the Company and any third parties to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other
form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Participant’s participation in the Plan, including any
requisite transfer of such Data as may be required for the administration of the Plan and/or the subsequent holding of shares
of Common Stock on the Participant’s behalf to a broker or other third party with whom the Participant may elect to deposit
any shares of Common Stock acquired or received pursuant to the Plan.

14. Confidentiality. The Participant agrees not to disclose the existence or terms of this Award to any other employees of
the Company or third parties with the exception of the Participant’s accountants, attorneys, or spouse, and shall ensure that
none of them discloses such existence or terms to any other person, except as required to comply with legal process.

15. Failure to Comply; Recoupment.

(@) In addition to the remedies provided for in the Plan, if the Participant fails to comply with any of the terms and
conditions of the Plan or this Agreement, unless such failure is remedied within ten days after the Participant is notified of
such failure by the Committee, such failure to comply shall be grounds for the cancellation and forfeiture of this Award, in
whole or in part, as the Committee may determine.

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the Company will be entitled to the extent permitted or required
by applicable law or Company policy as in effect from time to time to recoup compensation of whatever kind paid by the
Company or any of its Subsidiaries at any time to a Participant under the Plan, including any benefits the Participant may
receive in connection with the grant or vesting of RSUs pursuant to this Agreement.

16. Rights as a Stockholder. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Agreement or the Plan, the Participant shall
not have any rights as a stockholder with respect to any shares of Common Stock covered by or relating to this Award
granted pursuant to the Plan until the date (if any) of the issuance of such shares of Common Stock or the date as of which
the Company records



the Participant or his or her nominee as the owner of such shares of Common Stock, free and clear of any restrictions or
conditions pursuant to the Plan or this Agreement, in its books and records.

17. Modification. This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof. The Committee may amend, modify or terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan,
provided that no such amendment or modification shall adversely affect the right of the Participant under this Agreement
without the Participant’s written consent other than as set forth in Section 17(b) of the Plan.

18. Governing Law. All matters arising under this Agreement, including matters of validity, construction and interpretation,
shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to any state’s conflict of law principles.

19. Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. Southwestern may, in its sole and absolute discretion, decide to deliver any
documents related to current or future participation in the Plan by electronic means and/or require the Participant to accept
this Award or any future Award by electronic means. The Participant hereby consents to receive such documents by
electronic delivery and agrees that acceptance of this Award and any future Award may be through an on-line or electronic
system established and maintained by Southwestern or a third party designated by Southwestern.

20. Severability. Whenever feasible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under
applicable law, such provision will be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the
remainder of this Agreement

21. Waiver. The waiver by the Company with respect to your compliance with any provision of this Agreement shall not
operate or be construed as a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, or of any subsequent breach of such party of a
provision of this Agreement.

22. Participant Acknowledgment. By accepting this Agreement, the Participant agrees to be bound to all of the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan as the same may be amended from time to time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southwestern has caused this Agreement to be executed by its undersigned duly authorized
officer as of the day of , 20,

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY

By:



SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY
RESTRICTED CASH UNIT AWARD AGREEMENT

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY, a Delaware corporation (“Southwestern”), has on this [ ] day of

(the “Award Date”) granted to | (the “Employee”) a Restricted Cash Unit Award (“the “Award”). This Award |s
subject to the terms of this Restricted Cash Unit Award Agreement (the “Agreement”) and is made pursuant to the
Southwestern Energy Company 2022 Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) and the Southwestern Energy Company Guidelines for
Long-Term Incentive Awards (the “Guidelines”) thereunder, both of which are incorporated into this Agreement by reference.
Any capitalized terms used herein that are otherwise undefined shall have the meaning provided in the Plan or the
Guidelines.

1. Acceptance of Terms and Conditions. By acknowledging and accepting this Award, Employee agrees to be bound by
the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the Plan and all conditions established by Southwestern in connection with the
Award, and Employee further acknowledges and agrees that this Award does not confer any legal or equitable right (other
than those rights constituting the Award itself) against Southwestern or any subsidiary (collectively, the “Company”) directly
or indirectly, or give rise to any cause of action at law or in equity against the Company. To vest in the Award described in
this Agreement, Employee must accept this Award. If Employee fails to accept this Award prior to the first Vesting Date, the
Award will be cancelled and forfeited.

2 . Grant. Subject to the restrictions, limitations, terms and conditions specified in the Plan and this Agreement,
Southwestern hereby grants the Employee an Award in the amount of $ |-

3 . Vesting. Except as otherwise provided in Sections 6 and 7 of this Agreement, the Award will vest in three equal
amounts (each a “Vesting Amount”) on each of the first, second, and third anniversaries of the Award Date (each a “Vesting
Date”), provided Employee is employed on a Vesting Date.

4 . Payment. No later than 30 days following a Vesting Date, Company will pay the Vesting Amount in cash, less all
applicable taxes. Notwithstanding the forgoing, with respect to any Vesting Date that occurs after the Closing (as defined
below), at the election of the Committee in its sole discretion, the Award may be settled in shares of Parent Common Stock
(as defined below) (which number of shares will be determined by dividing the Vesting Amount, less all applicable taxes, by
the fair market value of such shares as of the applicable Vesting Date, rounded up to the nearest whole share).

“Closing” shall mean the closing of the transactions contemplated by that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger
dated as of January 10, 2024 by and among Chesapeake Energy Corporation (“Chesapeake”), Southwestern and certain
other entities.

“Parent Common Stock” shall mean the common stock of Chesapeake, par value $0.01 per share.



5. Termination of Employment.

(a) Termination due to Death, Disability or Retirement. If the Employee’s employment with the Company is
terminated as a result of the Employee’s death, Disability, defined below, or Retirement, defined below, all unvested
amounts on the date of such termination shall become fully vested and will be settled in accordance with Section 4 above.

“Disability” shall mean a condition entitling a Participant to benefits under the long-term disability policy maintained by
the Company and applicable to the Participant. For purposes of this Plan, a Participant's employment or service shall be
deemed to have terminated as a result of Disability on the date as of which the Participant is first entitled to receive disability
benefits under such policy, law or regulation; provided that with respect to any Award that is subject to Section 409A of the
Code, if such Award provides for any payment or distribution upon a Participant’s (i) Disability, then “Disability” shall have
the meaning given to such term in Section 1.409A-3(i)(4) of the Treasury Regulations or (ii) termination of employment or
service as a result of Disability, then such Participant's employment or service shall be deemed to have terminated as a
result of Disability on the date on which such Participant experiences a Separation from Service.

“Retirement” shall mean the termination of the employment of an Employee on or after the date on which the
Employee has both attained age 65 and completed 3 years of service with the Company.

(b) Other Terminations. If the Employee’s employment with the Company is terminated for any reason other than
those specified in Section 5(a) above or Section 6 below, all unvested amounts on the date of the Employee’s termination of
employment shall be forfeited and cancelled on the date of such termination of employment.

6. Change in Control. Upon a Change in Control, (x) to the extent no provision is made in connection with the Change in
Control for assumption of the Award, or (y) the Award is assumed or substituted in connection with the Change in Control
and the Participant’'s employment is terminated as set forth in Section 10(b) of the Plan, this Award shall fully vest and will
be settled in accordance with Section 4 above. For the avoidance of doubt, the Company’s Change in Control Severance
Plan will be considered an agreement with the Company for purposes of determining if the Participant is eligible for “Good
Reason” protection pursuant to Section 10(b) of the Plan.

7. Limitations on Transfer. No right under this agreement is transferable prior to the vesting of any Vesting Amount, and
any transfer of the Employee’s rights with respect to the Award, whether voluntary or involuntary, by operation of law or
otherwise, will result in the cancellation and forfeiture of this Award and the transfer shall be of no force or effect.

8. Responsibility for Taxes. The Employee shall be solely responsible for any applicable taxes (including, without
limitation, income and excise taxes) and penalties, and any interest that accrues thereon, which he or she incurs in
connection with the vesting, or settlement of this Award, in accordance with Section 16 of the Plan. However, upon the
exercise or settlement of this Award in cash, or any payment with respect to this Award, the Company shall have the right to
withhold from any payment required to be made pursuant thereto an amount sufficient to satisfy the federal,



state, local and/or non-U.S. withholding tax requirements, if any, attributable to such exercise, settlement or payment.

9. Section 409A of the Code. To the extent applicable, the benefits provided hereunder shall be paid in such a manner as
to satisfy Section 409A of the Code or an exception to the application of Section 409A of the Code. To the extent that these
benefits become subject to Section 409A of the Code, this Agreement and the Plan shall be interpreted and construed to the
fullest extent allowed under Section 409A of the Code and the applicable guidance thereunder to satisfy the requirements of
an exception or to comply with Section 409A of the Code and the applicable guidance thereunder and to avoid any
additional tax thereunder. Notwithstanding the foregoing or any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, in no event shall
the Company be liable to an Employee on account of an Award’s failure to (i) qualify for favorable U.S. or non-U.S. tax
treatment or (ii) avoid adverse tax treatment under U.S. or non-U.S. law, including, without limitation, Section 409A of the
Code. In addition, notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, if an Employee is a Specified Employee at the
time of his or her Separation from Service, any payment(s) with respect to any Award subject to Section 409A of the Code
to which such Employee would otherwise be entitled by reason of such Separation from Service shall be made on the date
that is six (6) months after the Employee’s Separation from Service (or, if earlier, the date of the Employee’s death).

10. Conformity with the Plan. This Agreement is intended to conform in all respects with, and is subject to, all applicable
provisions of the Plan. If there is any conflict between the terms and conditions of the Plan and this Agreement the terms of
the Plan, as interpreted by the Committee, shall govern.

11. No Rights to Continued Employment. Nothing in this Agreement shall confer upon the Employee any right with
respect to the continuation of the Employee’s employment by or service to the Company or interfere in any way with the
right of the Company at any time to terminate the Employee’s employment or service or to increase or decrease the
compensation of the Employee from the rate in existence at the time of the grant of this Award.

12. Consent to Transfer Personal Data. The Employee acknowledges and consents to the collection, use, processing
and transfer of personal data as described in this Section 11. The Company holds certain personal information about the
Employee for the purpose of managing and administering the Award (the “Data”). The Company may transfer Data to any
third parties assisting the Company in the implementation, administration and management of the Award. The Employee
authorizes the Company and any third parties to receive, possess, use, retain and transfer the Data, in electronic or other
form, for the purposes of implementing, administering and managing the Award.

13. Confidentiality. The Employee agrees not to disclose the existence or terms of this Award to any other employees of
the Company or third parties with the exception of the Employee’s accountants, attorneys, or spouse, and shall ensure that
none of them discloses such existence or terms to any other person, except as required to comply with legal process.

14. Maodification. This Agreement and the Plan constitute the entire agreement of the parties with respect to the subject
matter hereof. The Committee may amend, modify or terminate this



Agreement in accordance with Section 17 of the Plan, provided that no such amendment or modification shall adversely
affect the right of the Participant under this Agreement without the Participant’s written consent other than as set forth in
Section 17(b) of the Plan.

15. Governing Law. All matters arising under this Agreement, including matters of validity, construction and interpretation,
shall be governed by the internal laws of the State of Delaware, without regard to any state’s conflict of law principles.

16. Electronic Delivery and Acceptance. The Company may, in its sole discretion, decide to deliver any documents
related to the Award, including this Agreement, by electronic means and/or require the Employee to accept this Award or
any future Award by electronic means. The Employee hereby consents to receive such documents by electronic delivery
and agrees that acceptance of this Award and any future Award may be through an on-line or electronic system established
and maintained by Southwestern or a third party designated by Southwestern.

17. Severability. Whenever feasible, each provision of this Agreement will be interpreted in such manner as to be
effective and valid under applicable law, but if any provision of this Agreement is held to be prohibited by or invalid under
applicable law, such provision will be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the
remainder of this Agreement

18. Waiver. The waiver by the Company with respect to Employee’s compliance with any provision of this Agreement shall
not operate or be construed as a waiver of any other provision of this Agreement, or of any subsequent breach of such party
of a provision of this Agreement.

19. Participant Acknowledgment. By accepting this Agreement, the Participant agrees to be bound to all of the terms
and conditions of this Agreement and the Plan as the same may be amended from time to time.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Southwestern has caused this Agreement to be executed by its undersigned duly authorized
officer as of the day of , 20

SOUTHWESTERN ENERGY COMPANY

By:



Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, William J. Way, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Southwestern Energy Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered
by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 2, 2024 /sl WILLIAM J. WAY
William J. Way

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATION

I, Carl F. Giesler, Jr., certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Southwestern Energy Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make
the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and | are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-
15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to
the registrant's auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting.

Date: May 2, 2024 /s/ CARL F. GIESLER, JR.
Carl F. Giesler, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Southwestern Energy Company, a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, William J. Way, Director, President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Corporation, certify to my knowledge, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. Section 1350),
that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

Dated: _May 2, 2024 /s/ WILLIAM J. WAY
William J. Way

Director, President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION
Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
(Subsections (a) and (b) of Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code)

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Southwestern Energy Company, a Delaware corporation (the “Corporation”) on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended March 31, 2024 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, Carl F. Giesler, Jr., Executive Vice

President and Chief Financial Officer of the Corporation, certify to my knowledge, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C.
Section 1350), that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Corporation.

Dated: __May 2, 2024 /s CARL F. GIESLER, JR.

Carl F. Giesler, Jr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



